
Mayor 
James Kallander 
 

Council Members 
Keith van den Broek 
David Allison 
Bret Bradford 
EJ Cheshier 
David Reggiani 
Robert Beedle 
 

City Manager 
Mark Lynch 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Robyn Kincaid 
 

 
COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

MAY 14, 2012 @ 7:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

AGENDA 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

B.  ROLL CALL 
Mayor James Kallander, Council members Keith van den Broek, David Allison,  
Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani, and Robert Beedle 
 

C.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA………………...…………………………………….………. (voice vote) 
 

D.  DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

E.  COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1.  Guest Speakers 
2. Audience Comments regarding agenda items  

 

F. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR……….…………..................................................................... (roll call vote) 

3. Approval of exception for Fish Follies Opening Reception June 8, 2012…………………………………….…… (page 1) 
 

G. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
4. Minutes of 05-02-12 Regular Meeting…………………………………………………………...........................… (page 4) 
 

H. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 
5. Manager’s Report……………………………………………………………………………........................……. (page 10) 

 a. Memo in re exempt wage increases…………………………………………..………………..………… (page 11) 
6. City Clerk’s Report……………………………………………………………………………………………...... (page 12) 

 a. Documentation explaining the fiscal effect of HB182 on school funding………………………...……... (page 13) 

7. Staff reports 
 a. Sam Greenwood, Heney Trailer Court update…………………………………………………………… (page 30) 

 b. Sam Greenwood, Cordova Kitchen update………………………………………………………….…… (page 32) 

 c. Moe Zamarron, Paving wish list report……………………………………………………...……..…….. (page 33) 

 d. Moe Zamarron, Snow Dump information/update…………………………………………………..……. (page 34) 

 e. Ashley Royal, Monthly Financials…………………………………………………………...…….…….. (page 35) 
 

I. CORRESPONDENCE 
8. Email from Jim Kacsh, Council member resignation 04-17-12…..….………………………………….……...… (page 43) 
9. Letter from PWSSC in re lease renewal request 04-26-12………..….………………………………..……......… (page 44) 
10. Letter from Diane Wiese in re City snow removal 05-03-12…………………………………………………..... (page 45) 

11. Letter from Office of History & Archaeology in re rant award for Pioneer Igloo 04-27-12…………………..... (page 49) 

12. Letter from Department of Revenue notifying of TAPS appeal of 2007, 2008, 2009………..…………….…… (page 50) 
 supplemental assessment 
13. Email from George Covel in re nepotism in Charter…………………………….………………………....…… (page 51) 
 

J. NEW BUSINESS 
14. Resolution 05-12-25…………………………………………………………………………….…..… (voice vote)(page 52) 

A resolution placing a ballot proposition before the voters at the regular election on March 5, 2013 
amending Article IV, Section 4-3 to remove the prohibition of employment of Council member, City 
Manager, and Mayor family members (Council may choose to discuss with City Attorney in executive session) 

15. Adoption of certified 2012 property tax roll……………………………………………….….……… (voice vote)(page 55) 
16. Contract approval for preliminary design for Harbor Boardwalks…………………………….……… (voice vote)(page 59) 

17. Contract approval for Corps permitting for Shipyard Fill project…………………………………..… (voice vote)(page 72) 

18. Approval of City Addressing Policy………………………………………………..………………… (voice vote)(page 83) 

19. Acceptance of Planning and Zoning Commission Resolution 12-03…………………………....……. (voice vote)(page 90) 
20. Pending Agenda and Calendar…………………………………………………………….……………..…….... (page 99) 
 

K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
21. Attorney advice/information regarding agenda item 14 (if necessary) 
 

N. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the government; (2) 
Subjects that tend prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are 

required to be confidential; (4) Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosures. 
If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, 

you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
All City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  

1



 

A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    May 9, 2012 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      CMC 6.12.030-040   
 

 
Please see attached letter from the Cordova Historical Society and the appropriate Code 
reference. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Move to except by use permit, pursuant to Cordova Municipal 
Code 6.12.040, the Cordova Library on Friday June 8 from 5pm – 8pm for the Fish Follies 
Opening Reception. 
 
REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority voice vote. 
 
 
 
 
 

2



  Preserving Cordova’s past for the future… 
  A community museum and educational facility. 
 
 

PO Box 391, 622 First Street, Cordova Alaska 99574  www.cordovamuseum.org 
 
 

 
 

Ma yo r Jim Ka lla nde r       Ma y 8, 2012 

City Co unc il Me mbe rs 

 

 

Ge ntle me n: 

 

The  Co rdo va  Histo ric a l So c ie ty will be  ho sting  its’  te nth a nnua l Fish Follie s Jurie d 

Art Show this c o ming  mo nth o n June  8, 2012.  This ho me -g ro wn e xhib it will 

fe a ture  wo rks o f a rt re la te d  to  fishing  o r the  se a  a nd inc lude  wo rks o f a rt c re a te d  

a ro und Ala ska  a nd the  lo we r 48. This ye a r’ s juro r is Co rdo va ’ s o wn De nis Ke o g h.  

 

The  Co rdo va  Histo ric a l So c ie ty wo uld  like  to  re q ue st a n e xc e ptio na l use  pe rmit 

to  City Ordina nc e  6.12.030 re g a rding  the  a llo wa nc e  o f a lc o ho lic  b e ve ra g e s 

within a  munic ipa l build ing  fo r this a nnua l e ve nt, the  o pe ning  Re c e ptio n o f Fish 

Fo llie s 2012.  

 

We  wo uld  like  to  be  a b le  to  o ffe r wine  (o nly) a lo ng  with the  c he e se c a ke s a nd 

c ho c o la te s fo r the  o pe ning  re c e ptio n o n Frida y, June  8th fro m 5pm until 8 pm.  

 

The  e ve nt will be  ma nne d by Co rdo va  Histo ric a l Muse um sta ff a s we ll a s 

Co rdo va  Histo ric a l So c ie ty vo lunte e rs.  With yo ur a ppro va l we  wo uld  sub mit fo r a  

o ne -time  e ve nt pe rmit fro m the  Ala ska  Alc o ho l Co ntro l Bo a rd . 

 
“A Special Events Permit authorizes a nonprofit fraternal civic or patriotic organization active for at least 
two  years  before  application  and  incorporated  under AS  10.20  to  sell  or  dispense  beer  and wine  for 
specific events during a limited period of time. (permit fee ‐ $50.00 per day)” 
 

Tha nk yo u fo r c o nside ring  o ur re q ue st.  

 

Sinc e re ly,  

 

 

 

Co rdo va  Histo ric a l So c ie ty Truste e s 

3



6.12.030 - Alcoholic beverages—Consumption in public places. 

A. It is unlawful for any person to consume any alcoholic beverage on any public street, alley 

or highway within the city limits or in or upon the grounds of any city building or property, 

except as permitted by ordinance, use permit or regulation.  

 

B. It is unlawful for any person to possess any open bottle, can, or other receptacle, 

containing any alcoholic beverage on any public street, sidewalk or alley within the city limits 

or in or upon the grounds of any municipal building or property, except as permitted by 

ordinance, use permit or regulation.  

 

C. The city council is authorized to designate public areas and places within the city limits, in 

addition to those specified in subsection A and B of this section, in which the consumption of 

alcoholic beverages or possession of open alcoholic beverage containers is prohibited, and 

to cause signs to be posted in such areas or places advising members of the public of the 

prohibition.  

(Ord. 835 (part), 1999).  

6.12.040 - Exceptions. 

The city council is authorized by use permit to except any public street, alley, highway, city 

building or city property from Section 6.12.030.  

 

4



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 

PAGE 1 OF 6 

 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 @ 7:30 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  
MINUTES 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor James Kallander called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:35 pm on May 2, 2012, in the 
Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Kallander led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kallander and Council members Keith van den Broek, David 

Allison, Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and Robert Beedle. Also present were City 
Manager Mark Lynch and Deputy City Clerk Robyn Kincaid.  
 

D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
M/Reggiani S/Bradford to approve the Regular Agenda. 
Council chose to move item 24 before item 18 and item 25 before item 21. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
Allison declared a conflict as he works for Eagle Contracting who is on the agenda to be awarded a 
contract. Mayor Kallander agreed and requested that he remove himself from the room during that 
executive session and to not participate in the discussions on those items.  
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speakers  

a. Mt. Eccles Video Club presentation 
Kathy Zamudio presented two short videos from the video club advocating for sidewalks and cross 
walks near the elementary school.  

b. Buck Adams, City Investments 
Adams reported to Council that as of April 1st the City had about $15.5M on deposit with UBS in 6 
accounts. Since then the City’s accounts have had a drawdown of about $2.6M leaving about $14.1M as 
of this week. The domestic investments were the strongest. The fixed investments that were the 
strongest last year were weaker this quarter. They held off investing $900K due to the line of credit they 
were trying to set up. The line of credit will be accessible very soon if it is needed. They will be looking 
to invest that $900K when the market softens up a bit more when they can buy in at lower prices. Rate 
of return this year so far is up 2.5% year-to-date from last year. Beedle asked about credit quality and 
bond ratings. Adams responded that small amounts of the portfolio are not rated but it doesn’t have a 
huge impact on the overall portfolio. Mayor Kallander thanked Adams for the report.  
 

2. Audience comments regarding agenda items - None 
 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  
Harbor: Beedle reported that they received an update from the Clean Harbor Committee. NOAA had a 
meeting on improving marine habitat and Cordova looked really good. The commission passed their 
harbor facilities and upland master plan. They discussed the South Fill expansion proposal. The Harbor 
Master reported that based on 2004 estimates repairs of the damage to the harbor would be about $184K. 
HSB: Allison reported that they welcomed the new Hospital Administrator Theresa Carte to Cordova 

5



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
Mayor Kallander informed Council that the consent calendar was before them.  
4. Confirmation of CVFD Election of Officers  
Vote on Consent Calendar:  6 yeas, 0 nays. Cheshier – yes; Reggiani – yes; Beedle – yes; van den Broek 
– yes; Allison – yes and Bradford – yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/Reggiani S/Kacsh to approve the minutes. 
Reggiani pointed out two minor corrections which the Clerk noted.  
5. Minutes of March 21, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting 
6. Minutes of April 4, 2012 City Council Regular Meeting 
7. Minutes of April 5, 2012 City Council Work Session 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS - None 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

8. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Kallander reported that he had multiple meetings with staff the results of which will be 
forthcoming. The Samson project is moving along. Beedle asked what is happening with Samson. 
Mayor Kallander responded that the City had to give them more square footage, a tenth of an acre, and 
is waiting now to hear where they want us to move the utilities.  
 

9. Manager’s Report 
Lynch reported that the scrap from the Sound Developer and the Spartan will be moved by the end of 
the month. However, some people are starting to discard scrap metal there and he is not sure that when 
the barge comes they will take that other scrap. He will be traveling on the 29th or 30th of May for a 
meeting with a mediator, our attorney and IBEW to discuss the union grievances. Bradford stated that 
the new hospital administrator reported to the HSB that there is flooding in the basement of the 
hospital. Could we address that in the engineering of the new roof? Mayor Kallander responded that 
Hallquist is the project manager for the project and will be meeting with hospital staff to assess the 
issues. Beedle asked about the boardwalks for the harbor. Lynch responded that he has sent the 
proposal to the firm conducting the harbor study and did get a response but has not looked at it yet.  
 

10. City Clerk’s Report 
Kincaid reported on the foreclosure process for delinquent property taxes stating that there are 3 that 
still owe for 2010 and 7 that still owe for 2011. On May 18th if those that owe for 2010 have still not 
paid the properties will automatically be deeded to the City. On May 8th those that have not paid their 
2011 property tax will have a judgment filed against them. Kincaid informed Council that the State just 
approved a new records retention guide that she will be reviewing and that she will be attending 
training in Anchorage on May 11th for records management and IT collaboration. Lynch informed 
Council that there are file cabinets downstairs that are full of stuff from the 1940’s that needs to be 
looked through. He may request temporary help to get that cleaned out before moving to the Cordova 
Center. Kincaid responded that it is on her goals list for this summer if she gets time.  
 

11. Staff Reports 
 a. Cordova Center Phase I, Josh Hallquist 
Hallquist handed out a report to Council. Mayor Kallander commented that he likes seeing the 95% 
complete. Hallquist reported that the roofers started, he estimates they will be done in another week. 
The stone mason is doing a good job. They are starting on the cedar today. Dokoozian and OAC were in 

6



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

town last week for a meeting on the punch list and claims cases. The siding will be showing up on the 
24th of May. He is worried they will not be ready for the siding when it shows up. Windows are in town 
now. Sherman will be traveling to Juneau next week to meet with Paul.  
 b. Legislative Lobbyist, John Bitney 
 c. Solid Waste Upgrade Progress, Moe Zamarron 
Zamarron reported that he has been using grant money availability to prioritize the steps for the baler 
facility improvements project. The grant is $497K with a $213K match. $113K of that is in the budget 
which leaves $98K left to come up with. He proposed that refuse borrow from the City and pay it back 
over a 5-year term. The grant is here right now and they want us to use it soon. The pavers are here this 
year and it would be nice to get the earthwork done before it gets paved so we are not driving heavy 
equipment over the pavement. Mayor Kallander stated that they have been working towards this for 4-
5 years. He would like to get Council’s concurrence to direct staff to move this project forward. 
Reggiani stated that he supports the project. He would suggest a different funding source instead of a 
rate increase. Perhaps it could be funded out of the funded depreciation account. Zamarron responded 
that there has been some serious deterioration of equipment these last few years estimating about $50K 
worth. Those funds should go to towards that first but he is not opposed to using the excess to support 
this project. All of their equipment has had heavy usage this year. Reggiani stated that he is fine with 
getting the project started and dealing with the funding aspect at a later time. Bradford asked if this 
would be an additional building. Zamarron responded that it would be an addition to an existing 
structure as well as facility improvements. Mayor Kallander asked for concurrence for staff to proceed 
with the project then come back with a definite scope of work. Council concurred. Mayor Kallander 
asked about the sidewalks the video club was asking for. Zamarron responded that it will happen this 
summer. There is an issue with the City improving on State property. Also, he is concerned with a snow 
plow going over the raised sidewalk and if they will have to rebuild it every year. Zamarron clarified 
for Council that it will be a raised sidewalk made out of asphalt per the project proposal. Reggiani 
asked towards the intent of having a raised sidewalk. Lynch responded that the idea is that if you set the 
kids up higher they will be more easily visible. Bradford stated that is sounds like it could be a lighting 
issue. Zamarron responded that lighting was not addressed in the design.  
 

12. Department Quarterly Reports – 1Q, 2012 
 a. Harbormaster, Dale Muma 
 b. Director of Parks and Recreation, Susie Herschleb 
 c. UBS Financial, City Investments, Buck Adams 
 d. City Planner, Samantha Greenwood 
 e. Chief of Police, Bob Griffiths 
 f. City Fire Marshal, Paul Trumblee 
 g. Assistant City Manager/Info Services/Library/Museum/CDV CTR, Cathy Sherman 
 h. Director of Public Works, Moe Zamarron 
Zamarron reported that he has been working with the insurance company and the State Emergency 
Management people on snow damage, removal and repair costs. Mayor Kallander asked when we will 
know what they will cover. Zamarron responded that he thought it would be soon as he is talking to the 
adjusters now. Mayor Kallander asked for an update on LT2 at the next meeting. Zamarron reported 
that they had been trying to do a combined supervisory position for the refuse department and the 
public works but are splitting it back to two. He is working with insurance on a 2008 pickup that was 
flipped last year. Insurance has labeled it as totaled and will be sending us a check for $17K. He would 
like to replace the truck that is being estimated at $25K but they will be short $6-8K. Reggiani 
suggested adding it as a new capital item with depreciation schedule and to be funded out of the general 
fund. Council concurred. Zamarron informed Council that the pavers are in town and wanting to know 

7



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

what we want paved. He has a rough estimate for the parking along the south harbor at about $60-65K 
before adjusting for their parking their equipment on City land. Council asked that he bring a list of 
possible places to pave this year at the next meeting.  

i. Finance Director, Ashley Royal 
Royal reported that he has had challenges with the State on the refunding for the snow. Herschleb 
reported to him more damage that has been discovered today. He pointed out to Council that on page 78 
in their packet the report title should be “Cordova Center”. Mayor Kallander inquired about the $138K 
TAPS money. Lynch stated that it goes into the general fund so it can be invested. Mayor Kallander 
asked if we are accounting for it in a liability account since it was paid in protest. Royal replied that he 
will ask the auditors. Lynch informed Council that they pay their regular taxes and this “bonus” money 
in protest every year so there may be a higher dollar amount to be accounted for if we truly need to do 
that. Mayor Kallander informed Council that Valdez had to refund $50-60K because of an item that was 
contested in court. He doesn’t want Cordova to be in the same boat. He would like the auditor’s opinion 
on how far back we could be liable. Reggiani asked Royal if the $758K is the final total for account 333. 
Royal stated that some invoices are still are coming in. He expects the total to be closer to $900K - $1M 
before it is all done. Reggiani asked for more detail on that account, perhaps broken down into 
categories for EOC, plowing, hauling, etc. He also asked on the snow removal YTD actual being just 
under $14K if that was from typical billing or had it been changed with Snowpocalypse. Lynch 
responded that that is more a function of the public works department. They will be coding some things 
as regular snow expenses and some as expenses from Snowpocalypse referenced in account 333. Mostly 
the 333 items were pulled out in hopes of reimbursement. Beedle asked why facility utilities were at 
37% when we are only a quarter way through the budget year. Lynch responded that the first 3-months 
and last 3-months of the budget year are heavier in utilities.  
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
13. Letter from DCCED in re Hospital Roof appropriation of $2M 04-04-12 

14. Letter from USDA Chugach National Forest 04-11-12 

15. Article in re Brad Sjostedt AK Air Magazine April 2012 

16. Explanation from ACSA in re new school funding Mill Rate cap to schools 

17. AK Superior Court final judgment and taxes owed to Cordova for 2007, 2008, 2009 
 

Council took a 5-minute recess at 9:05 pm 
 

24. Union contract negotiations  
M/Reggiani S/Bradford to enter into executive session to review the Union contract negotiations. 
Subjects that may be discussed are matters that the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have 
an adverse effect upon the finances of the government. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

Council entered executive session at 9:11 pm (Clerk stepped out); Council came out of executive session at 
9:25 pm (Clerk returned) 
 

M/Allison S/Reggiani to postpone item 18 until immediately after item 20. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS - postponed 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
19. Contract approval: small boat harbor reconfiguration 

8



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

M/Reggiani S/Allison to direct the City Manager to enter into a contract (EXHIBIT B) with DHI 
Consulting Engineers for Professional Services to perform a preliminary study of Small Boat Harbor 
Reconfiguration in the new section of Cordova Small Boat Harbor.  
Allison commented that it would be nice to come up with new names for the old or new harbor.   
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

20. Collective Bargaining Agreement with IBEW Local Union 1547 approval 
M/Reggiani S/Allison to approve Collective Bargaining Agreement by and between the City of Cordova 
and IBEW Local Union 1547 representing City Employees covering the period of May 1, 2012 to April 
30, 2015.   
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

18. Resolution 05-12-24 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing supplemental 
appropriations in the total amount of $69,735  in the general fund, and enterprise funds to pay a 2012 
wage increase for all City employees; based on their rate of pay effective May 1, 2012; and amending 
the City of Cordova’s 2012 budget accordingly 
 

M/Bradford S/Beedle to approve resolution 05-12-24, a resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, authorizing supplemental appropriations in the total amount of $69,735 in the general 
fund, and enterprise funds to pay a 2012 wage increase for all City employees; based on their rate of pay 
effective May 1, 2012; and amending the City of Cordova’s 2012 budget accordingly 
 

Reggiani proposed an amendment to the resolution 05-12-24 that he handed out to Council. He stated 
that his intent with the amendment is to separate the bargaining unit employees, the exempt employees, 
the City Manager and the City Clerk into separate resolutions. His further intent is to follow up with 
another resolution for a pay increase for the exempt employees at the next meeting.  
 

M/Reggiani S/van den Broek to approve the amendment to resolution 05-12-24 to read as 
follows:  
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing a 3% wage increase 
for all IBEW bargaining unit (union) employees of the City of Cordova. 
WHEREAS, during contract renewal negotiations with I.B.E.W Local Union No. 1547 a three 
percent (3%) wage increase was agreed to beginning May 1, 2012; and 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, herby authorizes a three percent (3%) wage increase for all IBEW bargaining unit 
(union) employees of the City of Cordova.  
Vote on amendment: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  

 

Vote on main motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Reggiani – yes; Beedle – yes; van den Broek – yes; Allison – yes; 
Bradford – yes and Cheshier – yes. Motion passes.  
 

25. Contract approval: breakwater fill project   

M/Reggiani S/Bradford to enter into executive session to discuss the Contract approval: breakwater fill 
project. Subjects that may be discussed are matters that the immediate knowledge of which would 
clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the government. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 conflicted member (Allison). Motion passes.  
 

Council entered executive session at 9:33 pm (Allison stepped out); Council came out of executive session at 
9:46 pm (Allison returned) 
 

21. Contract approval: breakwater fill project  

9



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
MAY 02, 2012 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

M/Reggiani S/Bradford to direct the City Manager to accept the proposal by Eagle Contracting 
Corporation per the terms of their price schedule (EXHIBIT A) and the agreement (EXHIBIT B) for 
building a breakwater extension and fill pad for a total sum not to exceed two million eleven thousand 
dollars. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 1 conflicted member (Allison). Motion passes.  
 

22. Pending Agenda and Calendar 
M/Reggiani S/Bradford to cancel the May 16, 2012 Regular Council meeting.  
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
Council chose to schedule a special meeting on May 14th at 7:30 pm 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION - None 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
23. Council Comments  
Beedle stated that he is super excited about the breakwater 
 

Cheshier stated that he is super super excited about the breakwater 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
26. City Manager Employment Contract renewal 
 

M/Bradford S/Beedle to enter into executive session to discuss the City Manager’s Employment 
Contract renewal. Subjects that may be discussed are subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and 
character of any person; provided that the person may request a public discussion. 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 

Council entered executive session at 9:50 pm (Clerk stepped out, the City Manager stepped out temporarily); Council came 
out of executive session at 10:23 pm (Clerk and City Manager returned) 
 

Mayor Kallander stated that no action was taken 
 

R.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/Reggiani S/Bradford to adjourn the regular meeting at 10:24 pm 
Vote on motion: 6 yeas, 0 nays. Motion passes.  
 
 

Approved:  
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Robyn Kincaid, Deputy City Clerk  

10



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
May 9, 2012 Manager’s Report (for 05/14/12 Council meeting) 
 
 
Personnel issues: We are still working on filling positions in Public Works. A new mechanic has been hired, 
and we anticipate filling the Refuse and Streets supervisory positions soon. Parks & Rec will be hiring some 
temp help until their regular full time openings are filled. The new Library Director will start June 1. 
 
Union Contract/Grievances: I am traveling to Anchorage to a mediation meeting on May 25th to try to settle 
before going to arbitration, if possible. Grievance arbitration is set to begin in mid-June.   
 
Hospital Roof: This is progressing on schedule. CH2MHILL will have requests out to roofing contractors by 
May 15th and I will be in Anchorage on the afternoon of the 24th to review them with CH2MHILL. 
 
Sound Developer / Spartan: I have been notified that S&R’s barge has been delayed due to mechanical 
problems and is currently in dry dock. This could postpone removal of the scrap metal until near the end of 
June. This should still allow removal before work on the floating dock begins. Short term parking for trailers 
using the dock will be allowed in the adjacent lot. On the positive side, S&R has agreed to accept scrap 
vehicles. Clean-up day is being planned for early June and the City will be able to dispose of vehicle without 
them being transported to the landfill. Individual owners will still be required to certify that the vehicles have 
been drained of fluids and batteries removed. Violators will be cited, and charged for all costs associated with 
contamination clean-up. All vehicle drop offs must be coordinated through the City’s Refuse Division. 
 
Harbor Study & Boardwalks: A memo is in your packet recommending DHI Consulting Engineers for the 
initial work on the Boardwalks. DHI has begun work on the Harbor study as previously approved. 
 
Breakwater/Fill Project: The contractor is planning to start filling on or about May 21st. 
 
Shipyard Fill: A memo is in your packet recommending DHI Consulting Engineers for permitting of this 
project. 
 
North Fill Floating Dock: I am in value engineering with a contractor, and hope to bring a contract for 
approval at the next Council meeting. 
 
Snow Emergency: All required paperwork has been submitted to the State. Insurance has had an adjuster on 
site. We are waiting on responses from both. 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: 

citymanager@cityofcordova.net 

11



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 May 9, 2012 

 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Exempt Salary Increase 
 
 

Council recently approved a pay increase for union members, and asked that I bring back 
a proposal for an increase for exempt staff, other than the Clerk and Manager. I am 
recommending 4% for exempt staff based on the following: 

 

 Exempt staff do not receive overtime.  

 Exempt staff do not receive extra pay for holidays worked.  

 Exempt staff often work evenings, weekends, and holidays to complete work on 
schedule. 

 Exempt staff have a higher level of responsibility. 

 Exempt staff are expected to fill in for subordinates who are out sick or on vacation, 
and do not receive extra pay for doing so. 

 
If Council agrees with this recommendation, please advise and I will bring back a resolution to 
accomplish this at our next meeting. 

 

 

 

Thank you, 
 
Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

12



 

 

   CITY CLERK’S REPORT TO COUNCIL 

May 14, 2012 Special Council Meeting 

Date of Report: May 10, 2012 

 

Things I need feedback on: 

 See Pending Agenda:  need response in re July 4 m eet ing 

 See Cert ificat ion of Roll – need direct ion in re other m ill rate scenarios if necessary 

 See Pending Agenda – need to schedule execut ive sessions for Manager and Clerk 

evaluat ions 
 

Things I have been working on: 

 Signed paychecks/ other AP checks 

 Prepared agendas and packets for special m tg m eet ing on May 14, 2012 

 Com pleted analysis for cert ify ing roll;  Deputy Clerk prepared the reports (3 yr, 10yr)   

 Deputy Clerk cont inues with prep for EOR (expirat ion of the redem pt ion period)  for 

delinquent  2010 taxes which is Friday May 18 – last  day to redeem  propert ies on the 

2010 foreclosure list  

 Analyzed and researched inform at ion for report  in packet  in re HB182 – spoke with 

State DEED, School Finance Director Elizabeth Nudelm an 

 Conferred with At torney in re Board and Com m ission rules and regulat ions regarding 

open m eet ings act  and public not icing requirem ents 

 Conferred with At torney regarding Charter Change for next  Regular Elect ion 

 Prepared for 2012 I I MC Conference I  am  at tending in Port land on May 20 – 24 

(pr inted session m aterials, chose advanced academ y sessions to at tend)   

 Prepared evaluat ion packets for City Manager and City Clerk – also prepared m y own 

self-evaluat ion for handout  tonight  

 

City of Cordova,  

Office of the City Clerk 

Cordova, AK  99574 
602 Railroad Avenue *  PO Box 1210 

Phone:  907.424.6248 

Fax:  907.424.6000 

Cell:  907.253.6248 

E-m ail:  cityclerk@cityofcordova.net  

13



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    May 9, 2012 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      HB 182 
 

 
HB 182 was passed by the legislature and effects the school funding formula in that it reduces 
the minimum required contribution of a municipality to the equivalent of 2.65 mills of the Full 
Value Determination (as reported by the State Assessor each year). 
 
Attached here are three documents that should help explain the changes. 
 
1) a four page “Fiscal Note” that was attached to the legislation as it was being read before the 
legislature in Juneau – this was written by Elizabeth Nudelman the Director of School Finances 
and Facilities for the State of Alaska Department of Education and Early Development. 
 
2) a ten page letter, also written by Elizabeth Nudelman, including 5 pages of spreadsheets, an 
appendix A and then 2 more spreadsheets. 
 
3) Ms. Nudelman also sent me 2 additional spreadsheets in an effort to explain the changes. The 
first is entitled “State Cost” and the second is called “Mill Equivalent Change”. 
 
In a nutshell, the legislation attempts to level the playing field between all of the municipalities 
and/or boroughs that support school districts around the State of Alaska. The four mill minimum 
required contribution was based on the FVD’s from 1999 and only included 4 mills on 50% of 
the increase in the FVD’s in subsequent years. Therefore, the legislature has reset that mill rate 
required minimum contribution to 2.65 mills. The very last spreadsheet (“Mill Equivalent 
Change”) expresses this best. The projected FY13 mill rate equivalents ranged from 2.7 – 3.7. 
This legislation will reset that to 2.65 for everyone. 
 

14



cost ≠ codes Bill Version                    

Fiscal Note Number         

Publish Date                 

Identifier (file name) SB182CS(FIN)-EED-ESS-4-10-12 Dept. Affected Education & Early Development

Title Appropriation

 to school districts for pupil transportation." Allocation

Sponsor

Requester OMB Component Number 141

FY13 

Appropriation 

Requested

Included in 

Governor's 

FY13 

Request

FY13 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1002 Federal Receipts

1003 GF Match

1004 GF 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1005 GF/Prgm (DGF)

1037 GF/MH (UGF)

1178 temp code (UGF)

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

       

POSITIONS

Full-time

Part-time

Temporary

Estimated SUPPLEMENTAL (FY12) operating costs                      (separate supplemental appropriation required)

(discuss reasons and fund source(s) in analysis section)

   (separate capital appropriation required)

(discuss reasons and fund source(s) in analysis section)

Prepared by Elizabeth Nudelman, Director Phone

Division School Finance & Facilities Date/Time

Approved by Mike Hanley Date

Commissioner

Out-Year Cost Estimates

Note: Amounts do not include inflation unless otherwise noted below.

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Senate Education Committee

House Finance

Why this fiscal note differs from previous version (if initial version, please note as such)

Services

Commodities

Capital Outlay

Personal Services

Travel

(Thousands of Dollars)

Estimated CAPITAL (FY13) costs           

FISCAL NOTE

STATE OF ALASKA

2012  LEGISLATIVE  SESSION

Expenditures/Revenues (Thousands of Dollars)

K-12 Support

CSSB182(FIN)

Foundation Program

465-8679

4/10/12 12:00 AM

"An Act amending the amount of state funding provided

Grants, Benefits

Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING

FUND SOURCE

TOTAL

This fiscal note reports the calculation for the provision added to CSSB182 to set the Public Education Formula required local 

effort component at 2.65 mills of Full and True Value from the current provision of 4 mills of the Education Value.  The fiscal 

note effect of $21.3 million for FY2013 and $21.3 million for FY2014 is reported in the Public Education Fund fiscal note.  The 

analysis and attached calculation is presented here for explanation. 

CHANGE IN REVENUES

(Revised 8/17/2011 OMB) Page 1 of 4

4/10/2012

 

15



CSSB182(FIN)

Analysis

(Revised 8/17/2011 OMB) Page 2 of 4

FISCAL NOTE

STATE OF ALASKA BILL NO.

2012  LEGISLATIVE  SESSION

The state cost for the two Foundation program items in House for CSSB182, 1) setting the required local mill rate to 

2.65 mills for all city and borough school districts and 2) increasing the Career Technical Education/ VOC ED facor in 

the formula from 1.01 to 1.015  is presented in a fiscal note for the Public Education Fund, as the funding is 

deposited to the fund not into the Foundation Program component.   

 

The analysis and attached calculation is presented here for explanation.  

 

CSSB182 provides two changes to the Public Education Formula.  1) The required local effort mill rate is set to a 

consistent 2.65 mills for city and borough school districts as explained below. 

 

1)This bill amends the required local contribution for city and borough school districts in the Public School Funding 

Formula under AS 14.17.510 (c).   

 

Since 2001, the required local effort for city and borough school districts has been calculated by applying the four 

mills to a reduced assessed value, thereby creating a lower "effective mill rate."  Under current law the local effort is 

determined by including only 50% of the increase in assessed value since 1999 into the base for the mill rate 

calculation.  For example, [(full and true assessed value at 1999 + (full and true assessed value increases after 1999 * 

50%)) * (4 mill)].  Each year the reduction in local effort due to only including 50% of increased assessed value is paid 

for with state general fund.  As assessed values continue to grow, the discount gets larger and the state pays more 

of the required local effort.  

 

Because the growth of assessed value since 1999 has been different for each city and borough school district, the 

effective mill or Education mill rate paid for each city and borough school district is different.    

 

Currently, based on Full and True Value, the lowest mill rate is 2.65 mills.   

 

This legislation sets all city and borough mill rates at 2.65 mills of the Full and True Value and removes the provision 

for the 50% deduction of assessed value after 1999.  

 

The cost to level all city and borough school districts to the same Full and True Value 2.65 mill rate is $21.3 million.  

Under this application, all city and borough school districts will continue to pay the same 2.65 mills and the growth 

in assessed value will not further impact the state general fund or create separate effective rates between school 

districts.     

 

Since the change in the determination of the local requirement in FY2002, the state has paid more than $450 

million, through 2012, in state aid to cover the difference in basic need under AS 14.17.410 (b) (1).  
 

2) The legislation increases the Career and Technical Education/Voc Ed factor from 1.01 to 1.015 which sends an 

additional $5.9 million dollars to school districts annually.  In accordance with 14.17.420 (3) the law directs districts 

to spend these resources on secondary vocational and technical instruction. 

 

The funding mechanism is a general fund transfer to the Public Education Fund.  
 

16



Department of Education & Early Development Prepared by School Finance

Prepared 4/10/2012

FY2013 and FY2014 Projected Required Local - Mill Equivalent

A B C B - C B - C

District

4 Mills of Actual 

and True Full 

Value 

Assessment

Current 

Required Local 

Effort Based on 

Discounted 

Education 

Value

* 2.65 Mill  

Required Local

FY2013 

Increased State 

Aid

Increased State 

Aid FY2014 

Forward 

Funding of PEF, 

Estimate Based 

on FY2013 

Projection

Alaska Gateway -                     -                     -                     -                     

Aleutian Region -                     -                     -                     -                     

Aleutians East Borough 936,263             661,979             620,274             41,705               41,705               

Anchorage 142,535,804      102,589,817      94,429,970        8,159,847          8,159,847          

Annette Island -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Bering Strait -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Bristol Bay Borough 1,066,862          953,523             706,796             246,727             246,727             

Chatham -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Chugach -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Copper River -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Cordova  1,117,567          889,414             740,388             149,026             149,026             

Craig  507,409             460,212             336,159             124,053             124,053             

Delta/Greely -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Denali Borough 981,114             736,048             649,988             86,060               86,060               

Dillingham  673,416             629,245             446,138             183,107             183,107             

Fairbanks North Star Borough 38,618,976        28,737,831        25,585,072        3,152,759          3,152,759          

Galena  119,897             95,915               79,432               16,483               16,483               

Haines Borough 1,278,436          1,035,341          846,964             188,377             188,377             

Hoonah  290,205             195,746             192,261             3,485                 3,485                 

Hydaburg  60,042               46,467               39,778               6,689                 6,689                 

Iditarod Area -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Juneau Borough 17,976,873        13,976,029        11,909,678        2,066,351          2,066,351          

Kake  112,391             92,324               74,459               17,865               17,865               

Kashunamiut -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Kenai Peninsula Borough 33,354,567        24,779,109        22,097,401        2,681,708          2,681,708          

Ketchikan Gateway Borough 6,370,866          5,357,581          4,220,699          1,136,882          1,136,882          

Klawock  207,594             168,344             137,531             30,813               30,813               

Kodiak Island Borough 5,513,028          4,629,984          3,652,381          977,603             977,603             

Kuspuk -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Lake & Peninsula Borough 580,725             428,845             384,730             44,115               44,115               

Lower Kuskokwim -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Lower Yukon -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Mat-Su Borough 36,254,721        24,086,928        24,018,753        68,175               68,175               

Nenana  112,191             92,248               74,326               17,922               17,922               

Nome  1,307,759          1,037,732          866,390             171,342             171,342             

North Slope Borough -                     -                     

Northwest Arctic Borough 2,744,201          2,134,472          1,818,033          316,439             316,439             

Pelican  57,155               53,158               37,865               15,293               15,293               

Petersburg  1,399,399          1,187,397          927,102             260,295             260,295             

Pribilof  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Saint Marys 51,309               34,656               33,992               664                    664                    

Sitka Borough 4,609,850          3,576,461          3,054,025          522,436             522,436             

Skagway  -                     -                     

Southeast Island -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Southwest Region -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Tanana 37,116               30,226               24,589               5,637                 5,637                 

Unalaska  2,223,988          1,863,680          1,473,392          390,288             390,288             

Valdez  -                     -                     

Wrangell  770,596             681,357             510,520             170,837             170,837             

Yakutat  278,025             227,605             184,192             43,413               43,413               

Yukon Flats -                     -                     -                     -                     

Yukon/Koyukuk -                     -                     -                     -                     

Yupiit -                     -                     -                     -                     
Mt. Edgecumbe -                     -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL 302,148,347      221,469,674      21,296,396        21,296,396        

Page 3 of 4

17



State of Alaska Department of Education & Early Development Prepared by School Finance

House CSSB182 Public Education Formula, Career and Technical factor 1.015

Annual Increase

Alaska Gateway 33,434$                      

Aleutian Region 5,925                          

Aleutians East Borough 29,619                        

Anchorage 1,790,994                   

Annette Island 18,285                        

Bering Strait 178,342                      

Bristol Bay Borough 12,931                        

Chatham 15,949                        

Chugach 7,235                          

Copper River 32,125                        

Cordova 20,051                        

Craig 19,138                        

Delta Greely 43,803                        

Denali Borough 18,285                        

Dillingham 29,449                        

Fairbanks N. Star Borough 587,086                      

Galena 19,822                        

Haines Borough 17,943                        

Hoonah 9,228                          

Hydaburg 4,500                          

Iditarod Area 26,429                        

Juneau Borough 218,100                      

Kake 7,519                          

Kashunamiut 24,948                        

Kenai Peninsula Borough 418,541                      

Ketchikan Gateway Borough 102,471                      

Klawock 9,341                          

Kodiak Island Borough 132,717                      

Kuspuk 37,252                        

Lake and Peninsula Borough 46,478                        

Lower Kuskokwim 342,045                      

Lower Yukon 194,119                      

Mat-Su Borough 654,641                      

Nenana 14,012                        

Nome 44,429                        

North Slope Borough 134,766                      

Northwest Arctic Borough 175,437                      

Pelican 1,994                          

Petersburg 28,253                        

Pribilof 8,999                          

Saint Mary's 15,493                        

Sitka Borough 64,193                        

Skagway 4,671                          

Southeast Island 21,588                        

Southwest Region 62,029                        

Tanana 4,330                          

Unalaska 27,910                        

Valdez 34,518                        

Wrangell 17,772                        

Yakutat 8,373                          

Yukon Flats 37,479                        

Yukon Koyukuk 34,005                        

Yupiit 43,005                        

Mount Edgecumbe 19,254                        

Totals 5,911,255$                 
Page 4 of 4

18



19



20



School District

$5,680 Basic 

Need

SB182 Required 

Local Effort

Eligible Federal 

Impact AID

Impact AID 

Percent

Deductible 

Impact AID 

90.0% State AID

FY2013 

PROJ 

Adjusted 

Floor

Quality 

Schools

FY13 

PROJECTED Total 

State Entitlement

Alaska Gateway 7,803,070 0 303,394 100.00% 273,055 7,530,015         0 21,980 7,551,995          

Aleutian Region 1,416,706 0 47,400 100.00% 42,660 1,374,046         0 3,991 1,378,037          

Aleutians East  6,063,911 620,274 826,628 44.31% 329,651 5,113,986         0 17,081 5,131,067          

Anchorage 421,553,242 94,429,970 20,378,778 46.78% 8,579,873 318,543,399     0 1,187,474 319,730,873     

Annette Island 3,844,906 0 1,790,190 100.00% 1,611,171 2,233,735         0 10,831 2,244,566          

Bering Strait 37,578,823 0 9,953,065 100.00% 8,957,759 28,621,064       0 105,856 28,726,920       

Bristol Bay  2,700,670 706,796 167,472 53.74% 81,000 1,912,874         0 7,608 1,920,482          

Chatham 3,455,314 0 202,530 100.00% 182,277 3,273,037         0 9,733 3,282,770          

Chugach 2,345,045 0 59,166 100.00% 53,249 2,291,796         95,451 6,606 2,393,853          

Copper River 7,216,383 0 284,327 100.00% 255,894 6,960,489         0 20,328 6,980,817          

Cordova  4,355,765 740,388 16,197 40.80% 5,948 3,609,429         0 12,270 3,621,699          

Craig  5,710,558 336,159 523,000 43.03% 202,542 5,171,857         0 16,086 5,187,943          

Delta/Greely 10,548,726 0 356,671 100.00% 321,004 10,227,722       0 29,715 10,257,437       

Denali  6,263,109 649,988 9,152 31.25% 2,574 5,610,547         0 17,643 5,628,190          

Dillingham  6,806,628 446,138 585,048 33.07% 174,128 6,186,362         0 19,174 6,205,536          

Fairbanks 150,497,450 25,585,072 13,441,263 53.62% 6,486,485 118,425,893     0 423,936 118,849,829     

Galena  19,458,828 79,432 114,956 3.35% 3,466 19,375,930       0 54,814 19,430,744       

Haines  4,173,323 846,964 0 48.49% 0 3,326,359         0 11,756 3,338,115          

Hoonah  2,228,094 192,261 116,564 36.06% 37,830 1,998,003         0 6,276 2,004,279          

Hydaburg  1,135,489 39,778 231,692 19.26% 40,161 1,055,550         0 3,199 1,058,749          

Iditarod Area 6,005,180 0 279,827 100.00% 251,844 5,753,336         0 16,916 5,770,252          

Juneau  51,850,902 11,909,678 0 46.76% 0 39,941,224       0 146,059 40,087,283       

Kake  1,590,741 74,459 176,380 20.70% 32,860 1,483,422         0 4,481 1,487,903          

Kashunamiut 5,424,286 0 1,861,333 100.00% 1,675,200 3,749,086         0 15,280 3,764,366          

Kenai Peninsula  97,958,132 22,097,401 0 49.85% 0 75,860,731       0 275,938 76,136,669       

Ketchikan Gateway  23,122,769 4,220,699 0 48.40% 0 18,902,070       0 65,135 18,967,205       

Klawock  2,260,242 137,531 652,757 36.75% 215,899 1,906,812         0 6,367 1,913,179          

Kodiak Island  29,286,989 3,652,381 1,919,431 35.26% 609,112 25,025,496       0 82,499 25,107,995       

Kuspuk 7,686,744 0 1,338,775 100.00% 1,204,898 6,481,846         0 21,653 6,503,499          

Lake & Peninsula  9,781,414 384,730 1,786,068 29.72% 477,737 8,918,947         0 27,553 8,946,500          

Lower Kuskokwim 72,783,122 0 16,422,151 100.00% 14,779,936 58,003,186       0 205,023 58,208,209       

Lower Yukon 40,619,554 0 12,305,107 100.00% 11,074,596 29,544,958       0 114,421 29,659,379       

Mat-Su  161,486,035 24,018,753 0 49.68% 0 137,467,282     0 454,890 137,922,172     

Nenana  6,295,996 74,326 0 64.03% 0 6,221,670         0 17,735 6,239,405          

Nome  9,485,827 866,390 44,300 44.34% 17,678 8,601,759         0 26,721 8,628,480          

North Slope  27,940,090 12,164,847 4,545,891 36.02% 1,473,687 14,301,556       0 78,704 14,380,260       

Northwest Arctic  37,368,606 1,818,033 4,820,110 26.16% 1,134,847 34,415,726       0 105,264 34,520,990       

Pelican  404,643 37,865 0 71.23% 0 366,778            85,133 1,140 453,051             

Petersburg  6,830,030 927,102 0 49.41% 0 5,902,928         0 19,240 5,922,168          

Pribilof  1,818,111 0 626,378 100.00% 563,740 1,254,371         0 5,121 1,259,492          

Saint Mary's 3,208,916 33,992 0 41.81% 0 3,174,924         0 9,039 3,183,963          

Sitka  15,642,095 3,054,025 17,047 60.39% 9,265 12,578,805       0 44,062 12,622,867       

Skagway  945,777 439,172 0 34.99% 0 506,605            0 2,664 509,269             

Southeast Island 4,739,108 0 2,563 100.00% 2,307 4,736,801         0 13,350 4,750,151          

Southwest Region 13,073,372 0 3,838,862 100.00% 3,454,976 9,618,396         0 36,826 9,655,222          

Tanana 1,025,808 24,589 75,440 79.13% 53,726 947,493            0 2,890 950,383             

Unalaska  5,935,941 1,473,392 19,533 47.45% 8,342 4,454,207         0 16,721 4,470,928          

Valdez  7,948,251 3,428,798 7,625 41.87% 2,873 4,516,580         0 22,389 4,538,969          

Wrangell  4,720,478 510,520 1,407 32.67% 414 4,209,544         0 13,297 4,222,841          

Yakutat  1,700,592 184,192 131,577 36.20% 42,868 1,473,532         0 4,790 1,478,322          

Yukon Flats 7,968,642 0 827,849 100.00% 745,064 7,223,578         0 22,447 7,246,025          

Yukon/Koyukuk 11,858,534 0 992,005 100.00% 892,805 10,965,729       0 33,404 10,999,133       

Yupiit 9,139,006 0 2,908,280 100.00% 2,617,452 6,521,554         0 25,744 6,547,298          

Mt. Edgecumbe 3,898,809 0 1,007,473 100.00% 906,726 2,992,083         0 10,983 3,003,066          

26,027,300          

TOTALS: 1,396,960,782 216,206,095 106,015,662 69,889,579 1,110,865,108  180,584 3,935,103 1,141,008,095  
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\$13Foundation\Projection\[6Pager_FY13_Foundation_Proj_SB182_4-23-12.xlsm]Report

Page 1 of 5

21



School Distr

PROJ FY13 

ADM

PROJ FY13 

Corresp. 

ADM

FY13 PROJ 

Total ADM

Before School 

Size Adjust 

HH

Projected 

School Size 

ADM; HH 

included 

where eligb.

100% 

ISER 

District 

Cost 

Factor

Adjusted for 

Cost Factor

Special 

Needs Factor 

1.20

CTE Factor 

1.015

SPED 

Intsv.

Adjust 

for 

SPED 

Intsv 

*13.00

Students + 

Intensive 

Special 

Education

District 

Corresp. 

80%

District 

Adjusted 

ADM

Alaska Gatew 343.00 48.00 391.00 614.16 614.16 1.594 978.97 1174.76 1192.38 11 143 1335.38 38.40 1373.78

Aleutian Reg 30.00 0.00 30.00 79.20 89.10 1.939 172.76 207.31 210.42 3 39 249.42 0.00 249.42

Aleutians Eas 228.00 0.00 228.00 403.82 434.87 1.991 865.83 1039.00 1054.59 1 13 1067.59 0.00 1067.59

Anchorage 47682.00 863.00 48545.00 52404.53 52404.53 1.000 52404.53 62885.44 63828.72 746 9698 73526.72 690.40 74217.12

Annette Islan 252.40 0.00 252.40 375.75 399.42 1.338 534.42 641.30 650.92 2 26 676.92 0.00 676.92

Bering Strait 1620.00 0.00 1620.00 2611.80 2611.80 1.998 5218.38 6262.06 6355.99 20 260 6615.99 0.00 6615.99

Bristol Bay  145.00 0.00 145.00 237.15 256.90 1.478 379.70 455.64 462.47 1 13 475.47 0.00 475.47

Chatham 156.00 0.00 156.00 296.59 296.59 1.576 467.43 560.92 569.33 3 39 608.33 0.00 608.33

Chugach 63.00 195.00 258.00 140.96 140.96 1.496 210.88 253.06 256.86 0 0 256.86 156.00 412.86

Copper River 430.75 58.25 489.00 682.15 714.89 1.316 940.80 1128.96 1145.89 6 78 1223.89 46.60 1270.49

Cordova  323.00 0.00 323.00 461.04 475.62 1.234 586.92 704.30 714.86 4 52 766.86 0.00 766.86

Craig  326.00 323.00 649.00 464.28 464.28 1.206 559.92 671.90 681.98 5 65 746.98 258.40 1005.38

Delta/Greely 791.00 126.00 917.00 1032.97 1032.97 1.241 1281.92 1538.30 1561.37 15 195 1756.37 100.80 1857.17

Denali  225.00 500.00 725.00 373.29 401.05 1.332 534.20 641.04 650.66 4 52 702.66 400.00 1102.66

Dillingham  450.00 8.00 458.00 598.20 639.83 1.346 861.21 1033.45 1048.95 11 143 1191.95 6.40 1198.35

Fairbanks 14091.00 273.00 14364.00 16053.30 16053.30 1.070 17177.03 20612.44 20921.63 412 5356 26277.63 218.40 26496.03

Galena  304.00 3400.00 3704.00 416.62 416.62 1.391 579.52 695.42 705.85 0 0 705.85 2720.00 3425.85

Haines  283.00 5.00 288.00 437.70 437.70 1.200 525.24 630.29 639.74 7 91 730.74 4.00 734.74

Hoonah  114.00 0.00 114.00 192.06 192.06 1.399 268.69 322.43 327.27 5 65 392.27 0.00 392.27

Hydaburg  47.00 0.00 47.00 81.13 87.84 1.504 132.11 158.53 160.91 3 39 199.91 0.00 199.91

Iditarod Area 203.00 130.00 333.00 418.18 418.18 1.846 771.96 926.35 940.25 1 13 953.25 104.00 1057.25

Juneau  4908.00 70.00 4978.00 5573.37 5573.37 1.145 6381.51 7657.81 7772.68 100 1300 9072.68 56.00 9128.68

Kake  96.60 0.00 96.60 150.28 150.28 1.459 219.26 263.11 267.06 1 13 280.06 0.00 280.06

Kashunamiut 315.63 0.00 315.63 451.32 451.32 1.619 730.69 876.83 889.98 5 65 954.98 0.00 954.98

Kenai Penins 8093.00 833.00 8926.00 10457.81 10457.81 1.171 12246.10 14695.32 14915.75 128 1664 16579.75 666.40 17246.15

Ketchikan Ga 2043.00 83.00 2126.00 2563.76 2563.76 1.170 2999.60 3599.52 3653.51 27 351 4004.51 66.40 4070.91

Klawock  126.00 0.00 126.00 209.94 209.94 1.302 273.34 328.01 332.93 5 65 397.93 0.00 397.93

Kodiak Island  2401.00 111.00 2512.00 3012.33 3012.33 1.289 3882.89 4659.47 4729.36 26 338 5067.36 88.80 5156.16

Kuspuk 339.00 0.00 339.00 628.45 628.45 1.734 1089.73 1307.68 1327.30 2 26 1353.30 0.00 1353.30

Lake & Penin 310.25 15.00 325.25 660.18 682.71 1.994 1361.32 1633.58 1658.08 4 52 1710.08 12.00 1722.08

Lower Kusko 3972.00 0.00 3972.00 6018.13 6018.13 1.663 10008.15 12009.78 12189.93 48 624 12813.93 0.00 12813.93

Lower Yukon 2022.20 0.00 2022.20 3051.72 3051.72 1.861 5679.25 6815.10 6917.33 18 234 7151.33 0.00 7151.33

Mat-Su  15563.00 1662.00 17225.00 17902.07 17902.07 1.070 19155.21 22986.25 23331.04 290 3770 27101.04 1329.60 28430.64

Nenana  201.00 730.00 931.00 305.85 305.85 1.338 409.23 491.08 498.45 2 26 524.45 584.00 1108.45

Nome  715.00 12.00 727.00 896.01 896.01 1.450 1299.21 1559.05 1582.44 6 78 1660.44 9.60 1670.04

North Slope  1577.00 0.00 1577.00 2201.31 2201.31 1.791 3942.55 4731.06 4802.03 9 117 4919.03 0.00 4919.03

Northwest Ar 1921.00 0.00 1921.00 2816.58 2816.58 1.823 5134.63 6161.56 6253.98 25 325 6578.98 0.00 6578.98

Pelican  11.00 0.00 11.00 39.60 39.60 1.477 58.49 70.19 71.24 0 0 71.24 0.00 71.24

Petersburg  435.00 0.00 435.00 628.22 664.91 1.244 827.15 992.58 1007.47 15 195 1202.47 0.00 1202.47

Pribilof  81.00 0.00 81.00 130.47 155.41 1.691 262.80 315.36 320.09 0 0 320.09 0.00 320.09

Saint Mary's 175.00 0.00 175.00 277.45 279.04 1.624 453.16 543.79 551.95 1 13 564.95 0.00 564.95

Sitka  1280.00 30.00 1310.00 1571.88 1571.88 1.195 1878.40 2254.08 2287.89 34 442 2729.89 24.00 2753.89

Skagway  63.00 0.00 63.00 104.97 116.45 1.174 136.71 164.05 166.51 0 0 166.51 0.00 166.51

Southeast Isla 163.85 1.00 164.85 439.90 449.74 1.403 630.99 757.19 768.55 5 65 833.55 0.80 834.35

Southwest Re 634.55 0.00 634.55 1077.14 1077.14 1.685 1814.98 2177.98 2210.65 7 91 2301.65 0.00 2301.65

Tanana 35.00 0.00 35.00 63.25 71.07 1.786 126.93 152.32 154.60 2 26 180.60 0.00 180.60

Unalaska  420.00 0.00 420.00 565.80 565.80 1.441 815.32 978.38 993.06 4 52 1045.06 0.00 1045.06

Valdez  665.00 0.00 665.00 863.36 863.36 1.170 1010.13 1212.16 1230.34 13 169 1399.34 0.00 1399.34

Wrangell  312.00 100.00 412.00 449.16 449.16 1.159 520.58 624.70 634.07 9 117 751.07 80.00 831.07

Yakutat  94.00 0.00 94.00 146.98 174.09 1.412 245.82 294.98 299.40 0 0 299.40 0.00 299.40

Yukon Flats 263.00 3.00 266.00 505.27 518.19 2.116 1096.49 1315.79 1335.53 5 65 1400.53 2.40 1402.93

Yukon/Koyuk 267.00 980.00 1247.00 521.89 542.62 1.835 995.71 1194.85 1212.77 7 91 1303.77 784.00 2087.77

Yupiit 452.00 0.00 452.00 729.52 729.52 1.723 1256.96 1508.35 1530.98 6 78 1608.98 0.00 1608.98

Mt. Edgecum 400.00 0.00 400.00 471.60 471.60 1.195 563.56 676.27 686.41 0 0 686.41 0.00 686.41

TOTALS: 118,462.23 10,559.25 129,021.48 143,860.45 144,243.89 0.000 172,959.27 207,551.13 210,664.40 2,064 26,832 237,496.40 8,447.40 245,943.80
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\$13Foundation\Projection\[6Pager_FY13_Foundation_Proj_SB182_4-23-12.xlsm]Report

Page 2 of 5

22



School District 2011 Full Values

Projected FY12 PY 

Basic Need

.00265 x 2011 Full & 

True Value

45% of PY Basic 

Need

Local Effort [Lesser 

of .00265 or 45%]

Alaska Gateway -                            7,378,774             -                            0 -                            

Aleutian Region -                            1,474,869             -                            0 -                            

Aleutians East  234,065,800         6,424,364             620,274                2,890,964 620,274                

Anchorage 35,633,951,010    418,820,878         94,429,970           188,469,395 94,429,970           

Annette Island -                            3,787,254             -                            0 -                            

Bering Strait -                            36,847,864           -                            0 -                            

Bristol Bay  266,715,600         2,875,614             706,796                1,294,026 706,796                

Chatham -                            2,984,783             -                            0 -                            

Chugach -                            2,345,272             -                            0 -                            

Copper River -                            7,116,586             -                            0 -                            

Cordova  279,391,860         4,270,792             740,388                1,921,856 740,388                

Craig  126,852,300         5,563,049             336,159                2,503,372 336,159                

Delta/Greely -                            10,642,502           -                            0 -                            

Denali  245,278,600         5,965,988             649,988                2,684,695 649,988                

Dillingham  168,354,000         6,771,071             446,138                3,046,982 446,138                

Fairbanks 9,654,743,990      147,422,639         25,585,072           66,340,188 25,585,072           

Galena  29,974,200           19,496,714           79,432                  8,773,521 79,432                  

Haines  319,608,900         4,166,791             846,964                1,875,056 846,964                

Hoonah  72,551,200           2,102,111             192,261                945,950 192,261                

Hydaburg  15,010,600           1,134,466             39,778                  510,510 39,778                  

Iditarod Area -                            5,816,604             -                            0 -                            

Juneau  4,494,218,300      53,480,551           11,909,678           24,066,248 11,909,678           

Kake  28,097,800           1,460,896             74,459                  657,403 74,459                  

Kashunamiut -                            5,342,608             -                            0 -                            

Kenai Peninsula  8,338,641,710      96,916,704           22,097,401           43,612,517 22,097,401           

Ketchikan Gatew 1,592,716,600      22,736,302           4,220,699             10,231,336 4,220,699             

Klawock  51,898,400           2,286,370             137,531                1,028,867 137,531                

Kodiak Island  1,378,257,100      29,361,908           3,652,381             13,212,859 3,652,381             

Kuspuk -                            7,543,097             -                            0 -                            

Lake & Peninsula 145,181,300         9,623,681             384,730                4,330,656 384,730                

Lower Kuskokwim -                            72,095,558           -                            0 -                            

Lower Yukon -                            38,704,826           -                            0 -                            

Mat-Su  9,063,680,270      160,903,040         24,018,753           72,406,368 24,018,753           

Nenana  28,047,700           7,123,742             74,326                  3,205,684 74,326                  

Nome  326,939,700         9,262,206             866,390                4,167,993 866,390                

North Slope  17,039,853,140    27,032,994           45,155,611           12,164,847 12,164,847           

Northwest Arctic  686,050,200         33,469,457           1,818,033             15,061,256 1,818,033             

Pelican  14,288,700           396,918                37,865                  178,613 37,865                  

Petersburg  349,849,700         6,791,803             927,102                3,056,311 927,102                

Pribilof  -                            1,942,049             -                            0 -                            

Saint Mary's 12,827,200           3,250,721             33,992                  1,462,824 33,992                  

Sitka  1,152,462,400      15,218,254           3,054,025             6,848,214 3,054,025             

Skagway  345,981,800         975,938                916,852                439,172 439,172                

Southeast Island -                            4,521,734             -                            0 -                            

Southwest Region -                            12,601,250           -                            0 -                            

Tanana 9,279,000             1,028,250             24,589                  462,713 24,589                  

Unalaska  555,997,100         5,618,202             1,473,392             2,528,191 1,473,392             

Valdez  2,301,299,020      7,619,550             6,098,442             3,428,798 3,428,798             

Wrangell  192,649,100         4,555,587             510,520                2,050,014 510,520                

Yakutat  69,506,300           1,723,312             184,192                775,490 184,192                

Yukon Flats -                            7,837,321             -                            0 -                            

Yukon/Koyukuk -                            12,224,950           -                            0 -                            

Yupiit -                            9,048,126             -                            0 -                            

Mt. Edgecumbe -                            3,808,270             -                            0 -                            

TOTALS: 95,224,220,600    1,379,915,160      252,344,183         506,632,889 216,206,095         

G:\SF District Support\DistSup\$13Foundation\Projection\[6Pager_FY13_Foundation_Proj_SB182_4-23-12.xlsm]Report

Page 3 of 5

23



School District Local Effort

FY2013 

PROJECTED 

Basic Need

.002 Mills of 

Current F/V

23% of Basic 

Need

Additional 

Local 

Contribution 

[Greater of .002 

or 23%]

Maximum Local 

Contribution

Alaska Gateway -                    7,803,070        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Aleutian Region -                    1,416,706        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Aleutians East  620,274        6,063,911        468,132          1,394,700     1,394,700     2,014,974       

Anchorage 94,429,970   421,553,242    71,267,902    96,957,246   96,957,246   191,387,216   

Annette Island -                    3,844,906        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Bering Strait -                    37,578,823      -                      -                    -                    -                      

Bristol Bay  706,796        2,700,670        533,431          621,154        621,154        1,327,950       

Chatham -                    3,455,314        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Chugach -                    2,345,045        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Copper River -                    7,216,383        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Cordova  740,388        4,355,765        558,784          1,001,826     1,001,826     1,742,214       

Craig  336,159        5,710,558        253,705          1,313,428     1,313,428     1,649,587       

Delta/Greely -                    10,548,726      -                      -                    -                    -                      

Denali  649,988        6,263,109        490,557          1,440,515     1,440,515     2,090,503       

Dillingham  446,138        6,806,628        336,708          1,565,524     1,565,524     2,011,662       

Fairbanks 25,585,072   150,497,450    19,309,488    34,614,414   34,614,414   60,199,486     

Galena  79,432          19,458,828      59,948            4,475,530     4,475,530     4,554,962       

Haines  846,964        4,173,323        639,218          959,864        959,864        1,806,828       

Hoonah  192,261        2,228,094        145,102          512,462        512,462        704,723          

Hydaburg  39,778          1,135,489        30,021            261,162        261,162        300,940          

Iditarod Area -                    6,005,180        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Juneau  11,909,678   51,850,902      8,988,437      11,925,707   11,925,707   23,835,385     

Kake  74,459          1,590,741        56,196            365,870        365,870        440,329          

Kashunamiut -                    5,424,286        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Kenai Peninsula  22,097,401   97,958,132      16,677,283    22,530,370   22,530,370   44,627,771     

Ketchikan Gateway  4,220,699     23,122,769      3,185,433      5,318,237     5,318,237     9,538,936       

Klawock  137,531        2,260,242        103,797          519,856        519,856        657,387          

Kodiak Island  3,652,381     29,286,989      2,756,514      6,736,007     6,736,007     10,388,388     

Kuspuk -                    7,686,744        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Lake & Peninsula  384,730        9,781,414        290,363          2,249,725     2,249,725     2,634,455       

Lower Kuskokwim -                    72,783,122      -                      -                    -                    -                      

Lower Yukon -                    40,619,554      -                      -                    -                    -                      

Mat-Su  24,018,753   161,486,035    18,127,361    37,141,788   37,141,788   61,160,541     

Nenana  74,326          6,295,996        56,095            1,448,079     1,448,079     1,522,405       

Nome  866,390        9,485,827        653,879          2,181,740     2,181,740     3,048,130       

North Slope  12,164,847   27,940,090      34,079,706    6,426,221     34,079,706   46,244,553     

Northwest Arctic  1,818,033     37,368,606      1,372,100      8,594,779     8,594,779     10,412,812     

Pelican  37,865          404,643           28,577            93,068          93,068          130,933          

Petersburg  927,102        6,830,030        699,699          1,570,907     1,570,907     2,498,009       

Pribilof  -                    1,818,111        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Saint Mary's 33,992          3,208,916        25,654            738,051        738,051        772,043          

Sitka  3,054,025     15,642,095      2,304,925      3,597,682     3,597,682     6,651,707       

Skagway  439,172        945,777           691,964          217,529        691,964        1,131,136       

Southeast Island -                    4,739,108        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Southwest Region -                    13,073,372      -                      -                    -                    -                      

Tanana 24,589          1,025,808        18,558            235,936        235,936        260,525          

Unalaska  1,473,392     5,935,941        1,111,994      1,365,266     1,365,266     2,838,658       

Valdez  3,428,798     7,948,251        4,602,598      1,828,098     4,602,598     8,031,396       

Wrangell  510,520        4,720,478        385,298          1,085,710     1,085,710     1,596,230       

Yakutat  184,192        1,700,592        139,013          391,136        391,136        575,328          

Yukon Flats -                    7,968,642        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Yukon/Koyukuk -                    11,858,534      -                      -                    -                    -                      

Yupiit -                    9,139,006        -                      -                    -                    -                      

Mt. Edgecumbe -                    3,898,809        -                      -                    -                    -                      

TOTALS: 216,206,095 1,396,960,782 190,448,440  261,679,587 292,582,007 508,788,102   
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\$13Foundation\Projection\[6Pager_FY13_Foundation_Proj_SB182_4-23-12.xlsm]Report

Page 4 of 5

24



School District

FY'12 

Projected 

Remaining 

Floor

% Decrease 

to FY13 Floor

Amt. To 

Reduce Floor

2012 Projected PY 

Basic Need

FY2013 

PROJECTED 

Basic Need

40% of 

Difference

FY13 

PROJECTED 

Adjustment

FY13 

PROJECTED 

FLOOR

Alaska Gateway -              0% -                 7,378,774         7,803,070 -               -               -                 

Aleutian Region -              0% -                 1,474,869         1,416,706 -               -               -                 

Aleutians East  -              0% -                 6,424,364         6,063,911 -               -               -                 

Anchorage -              0% -                 418,820,878     421,553,242 -               -               -                 

Annette Island -              0% -                 3,787,254         3,844,906 -               -               -                 

Bering Strait -              0% -                 36,847,864       37,578,823 -               -               -                 

Bristol Bay  -              0% -                 2,875,614         2,700,670 -               -               -                 

Chatham -              0% -                 2,984,783         3,455,314 -               -               -                 

Chugach 95,451         0% -                 2,345,272         2,345,045 -               -               95,451           

Copper River -              0% -                 7,116,586         7,216,383 -               -               -                 

Cordova  -              0% -                 4,270,792         4,355,765 -               -               -                 

Craig  -              0% -                 5,563,049         5,710,558 -               -               -                 

Delta/Greely -              0% -                 10,642,502       10,548,726 -               -               -                 

Denali  -              0% -                 5,965,988         6,263,109 -               -               -                 

Dillingham  -              0% -                 6,771,071         6,806,628 -               -               -                 

Fairbanks -              0% -                 147,422,639     150,497,450 -               -               -                 

Galena  -              0% -                 19,496,714       19,458,828 -               -               -                 

Haines  -              0% -                 4,166,791         4,173,323 -               -               -                 

Hoonah  -              0% -                 2,102,111         2,228,094 -               -               -                 

Hydaburg  -              0% -                 1,134,466         1,135,489 -               -               -                 

Iditarod Area -              0% -                 5,816,604         6,005,180 -               -               -                 

Juneau  -              0% -                 53,480,551       51,850,902 -               -               -                 

Kake  -              0% -                 1,460,896         1,590,741 -               -               -                 

Kashunamiut -              0% -                 5,342,608         5,424,286 -               -               -                 

Kenai Peninsula  -              0% -                 96,916,704       97,958,132 -               -               -                 

Ketchikan Gateway  -              0% -                 22,736,302       23,122,769 -               -               -                 

Klawock  -              0% -                 2,286,370         2,260,242 -               -               -                 

Kodiak Island  -              0% -                 29,361,908       29,286,989 -               -               -                 

Kuspuk -              0% -                 7,543,097         7,686,744 -               -               -                 

Lake & Peninsula  -              0% -                 9,623,681         9,781,414 -               -               -                 

Lower Kuskokwim -              0% -                 72,095,558       72,783,122 -               -               -                 

Lower Yukon -              0% -                 38,704,826       40,619,554 -               -               -                 

Mat-Su  -              0% -                 160,903,040     161,486,035 -               -               -                 

Nenana  -              0% -                 7,123,742         6,295,996 -               -               -                 

Nome  -              0% -                 9,262,206         9,485,827 -               -               -                 

North Slope  -              0% -                 27,032,994       27,940,090 -               -               -                 

Northwest Arctic  -              0% -                 33,469,457       37,368,606 -               -               -                 

Pelican  88,223         0% -                 396,918            404,643 3,090           3,090           85,133           

Petersburg  -              0% -                 6,791,803         6,830,030 -               -               -                 

Pribilof  -              0% -                 1,942,049         1,818,111 -               -               -                 

Saint Mary's -              0% -                 3,250,721         3,208,916 -               -               -                 

Sitka  -              0% -                 15,218,254       15,642,095 -               -               -                 

Skagway  -              0% -                 975,938            945,777 -               -               -                 

Southeast Island -              0% -                 4,521,734         4,739,108 -               -               -                 

Southwest Region -              0% -                 12,601,250       13,073,372 -               -               -                 

Tanana -              0% -                 1,028,250         1,025,808 -               -               -                 

Unalaska  -              0% -                 5,618,202         5,935,941 -               -               -                 

Valdez  -              0% -                 7,619,550         7,948,251 -               -               -                 

Wrangell  -              0% -                 4,555,587         4,720,478 -               -               -                 

Yakutat  -              0% -                 1,723,312         1,700,592 -               -               -                 

Yukon Flats -              0% -                 7,837,321         7,968,642 -               -               -                 

Yukon/Koyukuk -              0% -                 12,224,950       11,858,534 -               -               -                 

Yupiit -              0% -                 9,048,126         9,139,006 -               -               -                 

Mt. Edgecumbe -              0% -                 3,808,270         3,898,809 -               -               -                 

TOTALS: 183,674      -             1,379,915,160  1,396,960,782  1,522,649    3,090           180,584         
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\$13Foundation\Projection\[6Pager_FY13_Foundation_Proj_SB182_4-23-12.xlsm]Report

Page 5 of 5

25



INFORMATION 

BASED ON 

PROJECTIONS, 

ACTUALS MAY 

CHANGE DATA          

School District

Projected Old 

FY13 Minimum 

Required Local 

Effort

Projected Old 

FY13 Maximum 

(Minimum plus 

Additional 

Allowable) Local 

Contribution

Projected New 

CSSB182 FY13 

Minimum 

Required Local 

Effort

Projected New 

CSSB182 FY13 

Maximum 
(Minimum plus 

Additional 

Allowable) Local 

Contribution

FY12 Budgeted 

Local 

Contribution

Difference -  FY12 

Budgeted Local 

Contribution less 

New CSSB182 

FY13 

PROJECTED 

maximum

FY13 Increased 

State Aid based on 

2.65 Mill Required 

Local Change in 

CSSB182 

Alaska Gateway -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Aleutian Region -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Aleutians East  661,979           2,049,885        620,274           2,014,974        1,379,725        (635,249)          41,705             

Anchorage 102,589,817    199,136,291    94,429,970      191,387,216    196,307,312    4,920,096        8,159,847        

Annette Island -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Bering Strait -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Bristol Bay  953,523           1,571,711        706,796           1,327,950        1,298,276        (29,674)            246,727           

Chatham -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Chugach -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Copper River -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Cordova  889,414           1,886,641        740,388           1,742,214        1,799,862        57,648             149,026           

Craig  460,212           1,769,251        336,159           1,649,587        672,575           (977,012)          124,053           

Delta/Greely -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Denali  736,048           2,172,369        649,988           2,090,503        2,069,720        (20,783)            86,060             

Dillingham  629,245           2,188,015        446,138           2,011,662        1,200,000        (811,662)          183,107           

Fairbanks 28,737,831      63,217,594      25,585,072      60,199,486      47,359,300      (12,840,186)    3,152,759        

Galena  95,915             4,566,899        79,432             4,554,962        2,058,928        (2,496,034)      16,483             

Haines  1,035,341        1,991,090        846,964           1,806,828        1,744,865        (61,963)            188,377           

Hoonah  195,746           706,091           192,261           704,723           515,167           (189,556)          3,485               

Hydaburg  46,467             306,597           39,778             300,940           188,065           (112,875)          6,689               

Iditarod Area -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Juneau  13,976,029      25,851,714      11,909,678      23,835,385      25,441,625      1,606,240        2,066,351        

Kake  92,324             456,470           74,459             440,329           110,000           (330,329)          17,865             

Kashunamiut -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Kenai Peninsula  24,779,109      47,213,485      22,097,401      44,627,771      43,251,135      (1,376,636)      2,681,708        

Ketchikan Gateway  5,357,581        10,652,316      4,220,699        9,538,936        8,650,000        (888,936)          1,136,882        

Klawock  168,344           686,057           137,531           657,387           348,730           (308,657)          30,813             

Kodiak Island  4,629,984        11,335,552      3,652,381        10,388,388      10,250,350      (138,038)          977,603           

Kuspuk -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Lake & Peninsula  428,845           2,667,910        384,730           2,634,455        1,028,792        (1,605,663)      44,115             

Lower Kuskokwim -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Lower Yukon -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Mat-Su  24,086,928      61,078,572      24,018,753      61,160,541      48,347,365      (12,813,176)    68,175             

Nenana  92,248             1,537,113        74,326             1,522,405        95,878             (1,426,527)      17,922             

Nome  1,037,732        3,209,282        866,390           3,048,130        1,763,747        (1,284,383)      171,342           

North Slope  12,164,847      46,244,553      12,164,847      46,244,553      33,375,626      (12,868,927)    -                   

Northwest Arctic  2,134,472        10,689,014      1,818,033        10,412,812      4,000,000        (6,412,812)      316,439           

Pelican  53,158             145,769           37,865             130,933           51,841             (79,092)            15,293             

Petersburg  1,187,397        2,751,824        927,102           2,498,009        1,818,000        (680,009)          260,295           

Pribilof  -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Saint Mary's 34,656             769,153           33,992             772,043           34,900             (737,143)          664                  

Sitka  3,576,461        7,159,420        3,054,025        6,651,707        5,026,975        (1,624,732)      522,436           

Skagway  439,172           1,131,136        439,172           1,131,136        1,131,136        -                   -                   

Southeast Island -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Southwest Region -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Tanana 30,226             265,169           24,589             260,525           31,075             (229,450)          5,637               

Unalaska  1,863,680        3,222,545        1,473,392        2,838,658        3,054,589        215,931           390,288           

Valdez  3,428,798        8,031,396        3,428,798        8,031,396        8,031,396        -                   -                   

Wrangell  681,357           1,762,991        510,520           1,596,230        1,545,287        (50,943)            170,837           

Yakutat  227,605           616,821           184,192           575,328           441,000           (134,328)          43,413             

Yukon Flats -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Yukon/Koyukuk -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Yupiit -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Mt. Edgecumbe -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTALS: 237,502,491    529,040,696    216,206,095    508,788,102    454,423,242    (54,364,860)    21,296,396      
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\$13Foundation\Projection\[6Pager_FY13_Foundation_Proj_SB182_4-23-12.xlsm]Report

Appendix A

26



State of Alaska Department of Education & Early Development Page 1 of 2

FY2013 Projected Funding - $25M Grant; CTE increase; Pupil Transportation

Prepared by School Finance 4/16/2012

School District

FY2013             

$25 million by 

AADM             

One-Time          

Funding

CTE Career & 

Technical Education/ 

Voc Ed Increase Factor 

From 1.01 to 1.015        

Formula Increase

Increase to 

Pupil 

Transportation 

In FY2012

Increase to 

Pupil 

Transportation 

In FY2013 TOTAL

Alaska Gateway 139,636$                33,434$                            136,290$         168,070$         477,430$         

Aleutian Region 25,355                    5,925                                -                   -                   31,280             

Aleutians East Borough 108,449                  29,619                              7,026               9,348               154,442           

Anchorage 7,543,981               1,790,994                         1,331,252        2,002,644        12,668,871      

Annette Island 68,772                    18,285                              32,256             31,045             150,358           

Bering Strait 672,164                  178,342                            -                   3,240               853,746           

Bristol Bay Borough 48,304                    12,931                              53,457             64,235             178,927           

Chatham 61,813                    15,949                              29,790             33,072             140,624           

Chugach 42,015                    7,235                                -                   -                   49,250             

Copper River 129,116                  32,125                              50,781             72,797             284,819           

Cordova 77,922                    20,051                              13,305             16,796             128,074           

Craig 102,286                  19,138                              48,408             50,856             220,688           

Delta Greely 188,795                  43,803                              126,856           168,483           527,937           

Denali Borough 112,232                  18,285                              -                   13,050             143,567           

Dillingham 121,800                  29,449                              63,770             79,650             294,669           

Fairbanks N. Star Borough 2,694,193               587,086                            1,582,407        1,958,649        6,822,335        

Galena 349,356                  19,822                              -                   2,432               371,610           

Haines Borough 74,681                    17,943                              -                   5,660               98,284             

Hoonah 39,878                    9,228                                -                   1,140               50,246             

Hydaburg 20,326                    4,500                                -                   -                   24,826             

Iditarod Area 107,450                  26,429                              4,478               6,090               144,447           

Juneau Borough 927,947                  218,100                            234,530           328,836           1,709,413        

Kake 28,454                    7,519                                6,205               7,342               49,520             

Kashunamiut 97,037                    24,948                              -                   -                   121,985           

Kenai Peninsula Borough 1,752,986               418,541                            741,534           2,177,017        5,090,078        

Ketchikan Gateway Borough 413,722                  102,471                            -                   46,989             563,182           

Klawock 40,453                    9,341                                49,041             47,880             146,715           

Kodiak Island Borough 523,962                  132,717                            496,167           557,032           1,709,878        

Kuspuk 137,477                  37,252                              -                   7,119               181,848           

Lake and Peninsula Borough 174,957                  46,478                              927                  4,654               227,016           

Lower Kuskokwim 1,301,916               342,045                            270,079           305,844           2,219,884        

Lower Yukon 726,529                  194,119                            -                   -                   920,648           

Mat-Su Borough 2,890,468               654,641                            2,226,667        2,661,273        8,433,049        

Nenana 112,899                  14,012                              5,097               9,045               141,053           

Nome 169,681                  44,429                              155,636           179,465           549,211           

North Slope Borough 499,719                  134,766                            275,045           328,016           1,237,546        

Northwest Arctic Borough 668,438                  175,437                            5,410               7,684               856,969           

Pelican 7,236                      1,994                                -                   22                    9,252               

Petersburg 122,242                  28,253                              41,812             47,850             240,157           

Pribilof 32,514                    8,999                                -                   -                   41,513             

Saint Mary's 57,392                    15,493                              21,346             21,700             115,931           

Sitka Borough 279,967                  64,193                              -                   17,920             362,080           

Skagway 16,914                    4,671                                -                   63                    21,648             

Southeast Island 84,784                    21,588                              8,845               14,910             130,127           

Southwest Region 233,841                  62,029                              -                   12,056             307,926           

Tanana 18,358                    4,330                                -                   525                  23,213             

Unalaska 106,180                  27,910                              -                   8,820               142,910           

Valdez 142,226                  34,518                              46,610             61,845             285,199           

Wrangell 84,517                    17,772                              32,739             39,624             174,652           

Yakutat 30,413                    8,373                                2,203               4,230               45,219             

Yukon Flats 142,539                  37,479                              3,325               5,523               188,866           

Yukon Koyukuk 212,510                  34,005                              -                   2,670               249,185           

Yupiit 163,474                  43,005                              -                   -                   206,479           

Mt Edgecumbe High School 69,724                    19,254                              -                   -                   88,978             

Totals 25,000,000$           5,911,255$                       8,103,294$      11,593,211$    50,607,760$    

G:\SF District Support\SF Audit\$$$$$2012LEG_Followup\$$LegCloseout_4-2012\[PupilTran_MillRate2.65_CTEincrease_$25MbyAADM_4-16-12.xlsx]

27



State of Alaska Department of Education & Early Development Page 2 of 2

CSSB 182 - Local Effort 2.65 Mill Rate

Updated by School Finance 4/19/2012

School District Required Local

Required Local 

at 2.65 Mill 

Rate

Cost shifted 

from Local to 

State based on 

2.65 Mills

Alaska Gateway -$                  -$                  -$                    

Aleutian Region -                    -                    -                      

Aleutians East Borough 661,979            620,274             41,705                

Anchorage 102,589,817     94,429,970        8,159,847           

Annette Island -                    -                    -                      

Bering Strait -                    -                    -                      

Bristol Bay Borough 953,523            706,796             246,727              

Chatham -                    -                    -                      

Chugach -                    -                    -                      

Copper River -                    -                    -                      

Cordova 889,414            740,388             149,026              

Craig 460,212            336,159             124,053              

Delta Greely -                    -                    -                      

Denali Borough 736,048            649,988             86,060                

Dillingham 629,245            446,138             183,107              

Fairbanks N. Star Borough 28,737,831       25,585,072        3,152,759           

Galena 95,915              79,432               16,483                

Haines Borough 1,035,341         846,964             188,377              

Hoonah 195,746            192,261             3,485                  

Hydaburg 46,467              39,778               6,689                  

Iditarod Area -                    -                    -                      

Juneau Borough 13,976,029       11,909,678        2,066,351           

Kake 92,324              74,459               17,865                

Kashunamiut -                    -                    -                      

Kenai Peninsula Borough 24,779,109       22,097,401        2,681,708           

Ketchikan Gateway Borough 5,357,581         4,220,699          1,136,882           

Klawock 168,344            137,531             30,813                

Kodiak Island Borough 4,629,984         3,652,381          977,603              

Kuspuk -                    -                    -                      

Lake and Peninsula Borough 428,845            384,730             44,115                

Lower Kuskokwim -                    -                    -                      

Lower Yukon -                    -                    -                      

Mat-Su Borough 24,086,928       24,018,753        68,175                

Nenana 92,248              74,326               17,922                

Nome 1,037,732         866,390             171,342              

North Slope Borough* 12,164,847       12,164,847        -                      

Northwest Arctic Borough 2,134,472         1,818,033          316,439              

Pelican 53,158              37,865               15,293                

Petersburg 1,187,397         927,102             260,295              

Pribilof -                    -                    -                      

Saint Mary's 34,656              33,992               664                     

Sitka Borough 3,576,461         3,054,025          522,436              

Skagway* 439,172            439,172             -                      

Southeast Island -                    -                    -                      

Southwest Region -                    -                    -                      

Tanana 30,226              24,589               5,637                  

Unalaska 1,863,680         1,473,392          390,288              

Valdez* 3,428,798         3,428,798          -                      

Wrangell 681,357            510,520             170,837              

Yakutat 227,605            184,192             43,413                

Yukon Flats -                    -                    -                      

Yukon Koyukuk -                    -                    -                      

Yupiit -                    -                    -                      

Mt Edgecumbe High School -                    -                    -                      

Totals 237,502,491$   216,206,095$    21,296,396$       

*Based on AS14.17.410 (b)(2) the district pays 45% of basic need for the preceding FY.

G:\SF District Support\SF Audit\$$$$$2012LEG_Followup\$$LegCloseout_4-2012\[PupilTran_MillRate2.65_CTEincrease_$25MbyAADM_4-16-12.xlsx]

By lowering the mill rate for city and 

borough school districts to 2.65 mills 

of the assessed Full and True Value a 

portion of the cost of basic need is 

shifted from the local government to 

the state. The FY2013 mill rate 

savings projections in CSSB182 show 

the savings by city / borough school 

district.  

 

For questions, please contact 

Elizabeth Nudelman by phone at 

907-465-8679 or through email at 

Elizabeth.Nudelman@alaska.gov. 

28



Department of Education and 

Early Development
Updated 12/1/11

Effects of SB174 on 

AS 14.17.410(b)(2)

STATE COST Prepared by School Finance

District

FY02 

Increased 

State Aid

FY03 

Increased 

State Aid

FY04 

Increased 

State Aid

FY05 

Increased 

State Aid

FY06 

Increased 

State Aid

FY07 

Increased 

State Aid

FY08 

Increased 

State Aid

FY09 

Increased 

State Aid

FY10 

Increased 

State Aid

FY11 

Increased 

State Aid

Preliminary 

FY12 

Increased 

State Aid

Projected 

FY13 

Increased 

State Aid

CUMULATIVE 

STATE AID 

Alaska Gateway -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Aleutian Region -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Aleutians East Borough 489           -            -              -              -              -              8,839          38,623         62,434        118,469      282,848      274,284      785,986        

Anchorage 1,827,538 5,201,483 7,085,229   11,107,435 13,980,346 18,833,077 26,345,651 34,838,625  38,501,977 38,935,812 39,277,215 39,945,987 275,880,375  

Annette Island -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Bering Strait -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Bristol Bay Borough -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              56,164        50,637        113,339      220,140        

Chatham -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Chugach -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Copper River -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Cordova  16,964      34,234      23,774        36,420        48,108        23,725        754             63,592         94,609        118,606      202,605      228,153      891,544        

Craig  -            405           -              -              -              -              -              3,655           -              4,667          40,417        47,197        96,341          

Delta/Greely -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Denali Borough -            60,663      60,156        73,214        73,214        73,214        149,562      212,649       211,954      215,179      215,159      245,066      1,590,030     

Dillingham  3,763        26,086      780             -              15,811        -              85,618        48,030         46,718        61,472        25,112        44,171        357,560        

Fairbanks North Star Bo 252,784    612,396    944,033      1,409,216   2,386,892   3,489,580   5,105,813   7,005,004    8,274,493   9,109,331   9,945,933   9,881,145   58,416,620    

Galena  121           20             427             1,210          1,210          1,210          4,982          8,374           23,684        24,828        23,263        23,982        113,312        

Haines Borough 11,922      37,397      37,144        42,500        45,171        94,243        149,855      207,498       289,472      258,865      261,766      243,095      1,678,928     

Hoonah  -            24,328      23,014        21,546        21,546        21,546        22,965        36,378         37,754        90,953        90,835        94,459        485,323        

Hydaburg  -            493           88               -              -              -              942             1,136           1,503          11,626        11,625        13,575        40,988          

Iditarod Area -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Juneau Borough 276,478    703,573    780,055      881,946      1,211,564   2,056,725   3,510,783   3,723,469    3,841,730   3,682,973   3,785,447   4,000,844   28,455,587    

Kake  -            -            280             2,476          2,476          2,476          3,230          3,840           5,349          19,055        19,011        20,067        78,261          

Kashunamiut -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Kenai Peninsula Boroug 396,460    955,598    1,639,406   2,584,199   2,921,957   3,431,335   4,244,039   5,596,202    6,988,799   8,165,514   7,872,194   8,575,458   53,371,161    

Ketchikan Gateway Bor 61,700      170,635    144,661      47,551        62,446        184,837      338,196      659,278       915,009      1,041,551   936,992      1,013,285   5,576,142     

Klawock  -            -            -              -              -              -              4,515          4,906           8,707          42,668        42,662        39,250        142,708        

Kodiak Island Borough 82,466      82,088      133,940      116,664      190,535      317,507      394,848      510,004       606,712      703,258      746,482      883,044      4,767,548     

Kuspuk -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Lake & Peninsula Borou -            2,012        -              -              -              -              -              -               2,845          8,166          8,161          151,880      173,064        

Lower Kuskokwim -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Lower Yukon -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Mat-Su Borough 554,203    978,270    1,485,659   2,270,976   3,731,858   6,139,250   9,056,429   11,202,265  11,436,170 11,898,626 12,248,068 12,167,793 83,169,567    

Nenana  -            -            -              877             356             7,668          9,285          19,738         23,601        16,009        23,573        19,943        121,050        

Nome  38,395      32,004      30,436        40,749        28,726        58,717        121,599      120,446       187,995      245,658      222,043      270,027      1,396,794     

North Slope Borough -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Northwest Arctic Boroug -            -            2,024          1,906          1,906          1,906          8,903          570,611       580,813      601,128      595,720      609,729      2,974,647     

Pelican  663           -            -              2,961          3,660          2,695          -              29                -              2,754          2,680          3,997          19,439          

Petersburg  20,751      29,850      -              11,096        60,678        116,348      73,391        113,165       172,270      237,056      200,378      212,002      1,246,985     

Pribilof  -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Saint Marys 71             443           -              786             786             786             1,157          1,014           16,562        16,865        16,832        16,653        71,955          

Sitka Borough 45,060      85,149      134,767      194,084      269,304      338,359      619,866      860,734       1,061,249   1,085,266   974,071      1,033,389   6,701,298     

Skagway  -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Southeast Island -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Southwest Region -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Tanana -            -            -              -              -              -              266             281              4,582          6,227          7,739          6,890          25,985          

Unalaska  -            -            -              -              5,742          57,658        146,325      175,794       171,587      245,178      273,900      360,308      1,436,492     

Valdez  -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Wrangell  4,884        37,019      1,871          -              550             744             -              -               32,874        76,034        85,682        89,239        328,897        

Yakutat  530           5,586        24,739        17,118        19,774        15,539        17,648        51,355         54,806        45,267        50,733        50,420        353,515        

Yukon Flats -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Yukon/Koyukuk -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Yupiit -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                

Mt. Edgecumbe HS -            -            -              -              -              -              -              -               -              -              -              -              -                
TOTAL $3,595,242 $9,079,732 $12,552,486 $18,864,929 $25,084,616 $35,269,145 $50,425,461 $66,076,695 $73,656,258 $77,145,225 $78,539,783 $80,678,671 $530,968,243
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\FoundationOther\Foundation History\Local Effort History\[FY02-12LocalEffortAssessed&educationWithMills-2Pager_11-2011.xlsx]State Cost

29



Department of Education and Early Development

Local Effort in Mill Equivalents

Updated 12/1/11

MILL EQUIVALENT

 CHANGE

Prepared by School Finance

District FY02 FY03 FY04 FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08 FY09  FY10 FY11

Prelim 

FY12

Proj 

FY13

Alaska Gateway -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Aleutian Region -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Aleutians East Borough 4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.7      3.5      3.2      2.8         2.8         

Anchorage 3.9      3.7      3.6      3.5      3.4      3.2      3.1      2.9      2.9      2.9      2.9         2.9         

Annette Island -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Bering Strait -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Bristol Bay Borough 4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.8      3.8         3.6         

Chatham -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Chugach -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Copper River -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Cordova  3.9      3.8      3.9      3.8      3.7      3.9      4.0      3.7      3.6      3.5      3.2         3.2         

Craig  4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.7         3.6         

Delta/Greely -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Denali Borough 4.0      3.6      3.6      3.5      3.5      3.5      3.2      3.1      3.1      3.1      3.1         3.0         

Dillingham  4.0      3.8      4.0      4.0      3.9      4.0      3.5      3.7      3.7      3.7      3.8         3.7         

Fairbanks North Star Borough 3.9      3.9      3.8      3.7      3.6      3.5      3.3      3.1      3.1      3.0      3.0         3.0         

Galena  4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.9      3.9      3.8      3.6      3.2      3.2      3.2         3.2         

Haines Borough 3.9      3.8      3.8      3.8      3.8      3.6      3.5      3.3      3.2      3.2      3.2         3.2         

Hoonah  4.0      3.4      3.4      3.4      3.4      3.4      3.4      3.2      3.1      2.7      2.7         2.7         

Hydaburg  4.0      3.9      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.9      3.8      3.2      3.2         3.1         

Iditarod Area -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Juneau Borough 3.9      3.8      3.7      3.7      3.6      3.4      3.2      3.1      3.1      3.2      3.1         3.1         

Kake  4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.9      3.9      3.8      3.8      3.7      3.3      3.3         3.3         

Kashunamiut -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Kenai Peninsula Borough 3.9      3.8      3.7      3.5      3.5      3.4      3.3      3.2      3.1      3.0      3.0         3.0         

Ketchikan Gateway Borough 3.9      3.9      3.9      4.0      3.9      3.8      3.7      3.5      3.4      3.4      3.4         3.4         

Klawock  4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.9      3.8      3.2      3.2         3.2         

Kodiak Island Borough 3.9      3.9      3.9      3.9      3.8      3.7      3.7      3.6      3.5      3.5      3.4         3.4         

Kuspuk -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Lake & Peninsula Borough 4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.9         3.0         

Lower Kuskokwim -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Lower Yukon -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Mat-Su Borough 3.8      3.7      3.6      3.4      3.2      3.0      2.8      2.7      2.7      2.7      2.7         2.7         

Nenana  4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.7      3.6      3.3      3.2      3.4      3.2         3.3         

Nome  3.8      3.8      3.9      3.8      3.9      3.7      3.5      3.5      3.3      3.2      3.3         3.2         

North Slope Borough -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Northwest Arctic Borough 4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.1      3.1      3.1      3.1         3.1         

Pelican  3.9      4.0      4.0      3.8      3.7      3.8      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.8      3.8         3.7         

Petersburg  3.9      3.9      4.0      4.0      3.8      3.6      3.7      3.6      3.5      3.3      3.4         3.4         

Pribilof  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Saint Marys 4.0      3.9      4.0      3.8      3.8      3.8      3.8      3.8      2.7      2.7      2.7         2.7         

Sitka Borough 3.9      3.9      3.8      3.7      3.7      3.6      3.3      3.2      3.1      3.1      3.1         3.1         

Skagway  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Southeast Island -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Southwest Region -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Tanana 4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.4      3.3      3.2         3.3         

Unalaska  -      -      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.9      3.7      3.6      3.6      3.5      3.5         3.4         

Valdez  -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Wrangell  4.0      3.8      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      4.0      3.8      3.6      3.6         3.5         

Yakutat  4.0      3.9      3.6      3.7      3.6      3.7      3.7      3.3      3.2      3.3      3.3         3.3         

Yukon Flats -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Yukon/Koyukuk -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Yupiit -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         

Mt. Edgecumbe HS -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -         -         
G:\SF District Support\DistSup\FoundationOther\Foundation History\Local Effort History\[FY02-12LocalEffortAssessed&educationWithMills-2Pager_11-2011.xlsx]SummaryMill Equivalent Change

MILL EQUIVALENT CHANGE

30



Memorandum 
To:  City Council 
From:  Sam Greenwood, City Planner 
Date:  5/10/2012 
Re:  Heney Trailer Court  
 

PART I. BACKGROUND: 
This has been an ongoing issue since 2000. Below is some of the history and the most 
recent activity.  

April 21, 2010 City Council Meeting Minutes:  
Council discussion and decision regarding Heney Trailer Court encroachment and 
survey.  
 

City Planner Anne Cervenka said that the area in question was researched by Leo 

Americus and he found a survey which says that there are in fact two trailers 
encroaching on City land. She was in need of some direction from Council. She 
believes that Council has two options: 
1.) To contact the Heney Trailer Court owner and ask if she is interested in 

purchasing enough land to bring those trailers into the trailer court (we would 

need to contact the attorney to determine the correct way to do that fairly) – if 

this is the route that Council chooses, she could hire Leo to survey the land; or 

2.) Start a trespass proceeding which would mean there would be no reason to do 

any further survey work. 

Allison said to provide the owner with the updated information and offer her a 
chance at buying the land. However, he had hoped it wouldn’t take nine or ten years 
to do it this time. Bradford concurred. Cheshier agreed. Beedle agreed with placing 
a time-frame on this offer. Anne asked who would pay for the survey. Bradford 
said he would suggest that the trailer court owner should pay for the survey. Vice-

Mayor Reggiani ensured that there was Council concurrence on offering to sell to 
the trailer court owner and on requiring her to incur the cost of the new survey. 

 

Planners Report April 2010 to Council: 
The Planning Department ordered a survey from Leo Americus to resolve the 
property line dispute between the City and Patty Hammersmith over an 
encroachment by Lot D-9 into City Land. Last week he brought in a copy of US 
Survey 11877, from June 1999 showing two trailers in Heney Trailer Court 
encroaching over the line. If the City requests further work from him in this matter 
he is ready to proceed. (Included) 
 

May 4, 2011: 
A letter addressed to City Planner Samantha Greenwood was sent from Ms. 
Hammersmith stating in part that “Because of the excessive costs, I have decided 
not to pursue this purchase.” Ms. Hammersmith stated that she had removed two 
trailers that had been vacant for years from spaces C-7 and C-8 which left ample 
space available within Heney Trailer Court for Becky Chapek to move her trailer. 

31



Trailer Park Manager Monika Reghetti was asked to offer that space to Ms. Chapek 
for her trailer, Ms. Chapek said that she was interested.  
 

May 19, 2011: 
A letter addressed to City Planner Samantha Greenwood was sent from Ms. 
Hammersmith stating that she felt that the she would be agreeable to leasing the 
land that is currently occupied by the trailers located on D-8 and D-9 for the life of 
the trailers. 
 

June 2011: 
Becky Chapek stated that local contractors would not move the mobile home to 
either lot. That the mobile was not structurally sound enough. She stated that she 
may be interested in purchasing the property from the city but access would be an 
issue.  
  

December 13, 2011: 
Assistant Planner called Patty Hammersmith and she said that she has not spoken 
with Becky Chapek as of late, and that she would not be agreeable to granting any 
kind of legal access perpetual or otherwise to Becky as she (Patty Hammersmith) 
owns the road and all of the utilities in Heney Trailer Court. She felt that either 
Becky could move her trailer to a lot less than 50 feet away from its current location 
or she (Patty Hammersmith) would be happy to lease the area that’s encroaching 
around both trailers for the life of the existing trailers. 

 

PART II.  GENERAL INFORMATION:  
The planning staff is proposing to lease the two sites to J&N Enterprises for the life of the 
mobile homes. The reasoning for this recommendation follows 

 There is a shortage of housing in this price range and in general in Cordova. 

 Lease will be at fair market value  

 Local contractor has stated that the mobile home that is sitting on city property is 
not structurally sound enough to be move in his opinion.  

 Leasing the property addresses both encroachment issues at one time. 

 All parties involved agree to the solution. 

 The City Property that the mobile homes are on is zoned Parks and Open Spaces; 
an exception 18.64.10 would allow the use of a mobile home to occur. The terms 
of the exception would include that the use exception would sunset with the life of 
the mobile home, if the mobile home is removed, or substantially destroyed. This 
has been cleared with the lawyers.  

 Considering the time that this situation has been ongoing and expense already 
incurred by the City, the cost of creating a legal contract and rectifying both 
situations while still providing housing seems to be the most cost effective at this 
point.   

32



Memorandum 
To:  City Council 
From:  Sam Greenwood, City Planner 
Date:  5/10/2012 
Re:  Cordova Kitchen, Lot 2 Block 3 CIP  
 
PART I. BACKGROUND: 
 
In April 2010 the City of Cordova and the Cordova Kitchen Project a non-profit organization 
entered into a lease to purchase contract. This contract was a 5 year contract with a lease rate of 
$10.00 a year.   
Due to circumstances out of their control Cordova Kitchen has determined that they cannot meet 
the requirements of the lease nor have the ability to purchase the lot. In fairness to the city they 
feel that terminating the lease with option to purchase is the appropriate action at this time   

The Planning and Zoning Commission will discuss the lot and its best use at their June 12th 
meeting and provide a recommendation to the City Council regarding land disposal.    

 

 
 

33



Memo 
 
 
To: Cordova City Council and James Kallander, Mayor 
From: Moe Zamarron, Director of Public Works 
CC: Mark Lynch, City Manager 
Date: 9 May, 2012 
Re: List of paving projects 
 
 
In a letter dated 8 May, 2012 Harris Sand and Gravel, the contractor for the State’s Copper River 
Highway resurfacing project, provided the City with a price to perform paving work on City owned 
facilities. For $2.90 per square foot Harris will mix and laydown 2” thick asphalt, provide traffic 
control and testing as needed on various lots and parking areas. If streets are to be paved the 
price would be reduced because more efficient machinery can be used on larger open areas. The 
Public Works Department was directed by City Council to provide a ‘wish list’ of priority areas for 
consideration and the related cost for each. 
 
The list of preferred City owned lots begins with the parking areas along Nicholoff Street. The 
harbor side of the street is 773’ long and the opposite side is 427’ in several small pieces. The 
total then is 1,200’. Multiplied by 25’ this becomes 30,000 square feet. At $2.90 the price is 
$87,000. 
 
The service access area at Mt Eccles Elementary School measures 83’ x 77’ for a total of 6,400 
square feet. Cost is $18,560. 
 
The parking apron in front of the High School is 300’ long by 32’ deep. The cost is 9,600 x $2.90 
or $27,840. To pave the balance of the parking area in front of the High School would about 
double the number, approximately $55,000 for the entire front of the school. 
 
Please consider this information and offer input as is seen fit. 
 
Thank you, 
Moe Zamarron 
Director of Public Works 
City of Cordova 

34



Memo 
 
 
To: Cordova City Council and James Kallander, Mayor 
From: Moe Zamarron, Director of Public Works 
CC: Mark Lynch, City Manager 
Date: 9 May, 2012 
Re: Snow dump responsibilities 
 
 
The City of Cordova is fielding a number of complaints concerning the enormous amount of snow 
that accumulated in various locations this past winter. Some of the sites are City owned snow 
dumps and are designated as such by the Planning department while others are privately owned 
with unwritten agreements allowing the City to make use of them. 
 
The extraordinary buildup of snow in December and January tested the limits of cooperation 
between private property owners and the public sector (City, State and Federal) on a number of 
fronts. Several times, at the worst of the winter conditions there were complaints registered that 
could be addressed quickly and the City took unorthodox steps to do this. Public snow dumps 
were opened up for private use, City crews were directed to stop using private properties for 
dump sites and most notably the City paid contractors to remove snow from dumps to relieve the 
burden overall.  
 
Even now, with significant melt underway there are issues coming up that continue to emphasize 
the delicate balance of responsibilities within a community. The mounds of snow cannot go away 
quickly enough and for some the resulting inconvenience is still very real. It is the opinion of the 
Public Works Department that to the extent any of our efforts were responsible for contributing to 
these situation we have spent an equal or greater effort to reduce the impacts. 
 
The City crews were certainly not the sole contributors to the snow dumps but as much as is 
possible due to conditions (like terrain or proximity to buildings) the snow that was deposited by 
us has been removed. We have to draw a line that we feel is equitable and leave the rest to the 
other responsible parties. 
 
This winter was a burden to every citizen of Cordova. There were unplanned expenses, 
dangerous conditions and long hours invested in maintaining the way of life we enjoy here.  In the 
end the financial impacts were felt by everyone, both private and public, and we now face the 
arduous task of getting over it. 
 
Please consider this information and offer input as is seen fit. 
 
Thank you, 
Moe Zamarron 
Director of Public Works 
City of Cordova 

35



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
FROM: Ashley Royal, Finance Director 
 
TO:  City Manager, Mayor and City Council 
 
Date:  May 9, 2012 
 
RE:  Monthly Report 
 
This is a Six page report, thru April 30, 2012. 

 Cash and Investments report, all funds 

 Revenue and Expenditure Report compared to Budget for General Fund 

 Revenue and Expenditure Report compared to budget all funds except School Project and 

Cordova Center 

 Cordova Center Project Report – condensed 

 School Project Report – condensed 

 Snowpococalypse Detail 

 

The Cash and Investments report shows comparison of 12/31/10 to 12/31/11 to 4/30/12. The 

report is divided in two parts – the top part showing the balances by general ledger account 

number, and where the money actually resides. The bottom part shows how the money is 

allocated between the various funds of the City. You will notice that a lot has changed since 

2010 in the fund structure of the general ledger. Sewer and Water Fund has been divided into 

two separate funds, and the Enterprise funds now each have a corresponding separation of their 

respective capital projects and depreciation reserve, and in the case of Refuse the landfill reserve.  

 

The financial statement for the General Fund is broken down by major categories for revenue, 

and by department. This report is a standard format for presentation to city councils, printed off 

the Caselle software. The first column is for the month of April, 2012. The second column is for 

the first quarter of 2012 YTD. The third column is the 2012 adopted budget. The fourth column 

is the difference between the YTD and the Budget, and the last column is the percent received or 

spent YTD. 

 

36



The third page is a financial report laid out in the same format as described above, but for all 

funds, except the School Project and Cordova Center. 

  

 The fourth page is a revised and simplified comprehensive report for the Cordova Center. It is 

designed to give an overview on one page. It’s a pretty standard format, with the first column 

showing the comprehensive budget as known at this time. The second column is for all 

transactions recorded prior to 2012. The third column is for the remaining amounts known. And 

the fourth column is for actual transactions thus far in 2012. 

 

The fifth page is designed to show the status of the School Project at the present time, for 

management purposes. The initial State Budget is shown in the first column, for reference and 

comparison to the second column, which is the total available per the general ledger. The third 

column is all the transactions actual prior to 2012. The fourth column is actual YTD for 2012. 

 

The sixth page is showing the more detailed breakdown as requested. 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Ashley Royal  
Finance Director, City of Cordova 

37



38



39



City of Cordova

Cash and Investments 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 4/30/2012

001-11000 FNB Checking ($40,990.83) ($117,035.34) ($501,296.65)

001-11001 FNB Sweep Acct. $2,715,894.15 $361,693.23 $1,347,555.50

001-11002 FNB Payroll Checking ($39,267.14) ($42,366.13) ($5,260.03)

001-11003 Cash XPB N/A $0.00 $15,502.29

001-11010 UBS - Central Treasury Investments $7,612,877.50 $7,569,873.99 $4,972,170.97

101-12015 AMLIP $2,610.30 $2,616.68 $2,625.00

104-12025 UBS - Permanent Fund Investments $8,033,064.58 $8,836,765.81 $9,184,662.93

420-12025 UBS School Capital Project $445,474.16 N/A N/A

203-11000 Cash Savings Acct $6,861.99 $6,887.94 $6,888.00

502-11000 FNBA Credit Cards Acct $324,843.57 $178,124.43 $24,377.83

805-12000 FNBA Certificate of Deposits $479,725.10 $480,442.09 $480,572.00

$19,541,093.38 $17,277,002.70 $15,527,797.84

Fund # Cash Allocation Reconciliation

101 General Fund $4,433,851.07 $5,255,710.89 $4,227,776.35

104 Permanent Fund $8,534,668.01 $8,929,994.81 $9,351,391.93

203 Ambulance Replacment Fund $54,304.83 $63,028.51 $63,028.57

333 2012 Snowpocalypse N/A N/A ($764,119.33)

401 General Projects & Grant Admn ($103,585.88) ($168,774.59) ($425,394.04)

408 School ILP Building N/A $105,242.89 $49,151.32

410 Chip Seal C.I. P. $100,546.53 ($61,634.45) $75,765.55

420 School Capital Project $2,552,396.89 $834,553.54 $814,683.84

426 Cordova Center Fund $1,456,881.79 $288,501.97 $492,909.33

430 Public Safety Building C.I. P. N/A ($75,000.00) ($75,000.00)

435 Hospital Repair Project N/A ($13,500.00) ($13,500.00)

442 Shipyard Building Project N/A ($5,650.00) ($5,650.00)

444 Shipyard Fill Project N/A ($5,000.00) ($5,000.00)

448 Sawmill Avenue Trail Project N/A ($5,000.00) ($5,000.00)

502 Harbor Enterprise Fund $703,404.87 $344,241.29 $150,790.02

Sewer/Water Enterprise Fund $543,643.91 N/A N/A

503 Sewer Enterprise Fund N/A $78,802.27 $80,430.07

504 Water Enterprise Fund N/A $199,704.11 $124,609.31

505 Refuse Enterprise Fund $1,232,282.24 $246,429.45 $230,769.70

506 Odiak Camper Park Fund $32,699.12 $23,943.31 $16,397.93

602 Harbor & Port Projects N/A $5,000.00 ($30,910.86)

603 Sewer Projects N/A $7,775.00 $2,478.83

604 Water Projects N/A ($237,937.56) ($311,137.56)

605 Solid Waste Projects N/A $68,936.43 $68,936.43

702 Harbor Fund Dep'n Reserve N/A $350,532.98 $350,532.98

703 Sewer Fund Dep'n Reserve N/A $56,500.00 $56,500.00

704 Water Fund Dep'n Reserve N/A $100,000.00 $100,000.00

705 Refuse Fund Dep'n Reserve N/A $300,444.16 $300,044.16

805 Landfill Fund N/A $535,449.69 $535,579.60

911 E-911 Special Revenue Fund N/A $54,708.00 $71,733.71

$19,541,093.38 $17,277,002.70 $15,527,797.84

40



CITY OF CORDOVA
EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 4 MONTHS ENDING APRIL 30, 2012

2012 SNOWPOCALYPSE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 33 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  31/09/2012     10:31AM       PAGE: 1

EMERGENCY PROTECTIVE MEASURES

333-400-50010 OT PERM EMP - ADMN .00 202.50 .00 (                   202.50) .0
333-400-50011 OT - REG EMP NONADMN 583.74 49,834.17 .00 (              49,834.17) .0
333-400-50020 TEMP  EMPLOYEES - REG PAY 320.00 74,135.00 .00 (              74,135.00) .0
333-400-50021 TEMP EMPLOYEES- OVERTIME .00 7,353.31 .00 (                7,353.31) .0
333-400-50100 FICA 24.48 5,590.99 .00 (                5,590.99) .0
333-400-50110 PERS .00 592.58 .00 (                   592.58) .0
333-400-50130 COMPENSATION INS. 38.59 5,771.28 .00 (                5,771.28) .0
333-400-50140 ESC 20.54 2,941.78 .00 (                2,941.78) .0
333-400-51010 SAFETY EQUIP & SUPPLIES .00 1,860.15 .00 (                1,860.15) .0
333-400-51020 OPERATING SUPPLIES 569.00 1,599.73 .00 (                1,599.73) .0
333-400-51022 EOC SUPPLIES .00 6,883.49 .00 (                6,883.49) .0
333-400-51023 FOOD COSTS FOR PARTICIPANTS .00 9,237.73 .00 (                9,237.73) .0
333-400-51025 EMERGENCY SHELTER EXPENSES .00 4,405.78 .00 (                4,405.78) .0
333-400-52000 COMMUNICATIONS .00 37.29 .00 (                     37.29) .0
333-400-52070 MOU/CONTRACT - HVY EQUIP 3,286.50 373,455.89 .00 (            373,455.89) .0
333-400-52075 MOU/CONTR OTHER THAN HVY EQUIP .00 143,770.75 .00 (            143,770.75) .0
333-400-52180 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 325.71 .00 (                   325.71) .0
333-400-54000 FUEL AND LUBE 418.68 30,608.50 .00 (              30,608.50) .0
333-400-54010 REPAIRS AND MAINT .00 1,151.07 .00 (                1,151.07) .0
333-400-54020 HVY EQUIP REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 7,837.77 .00 (                7,837.77) .0
333-400-55010 EQUIPMENT, FURNISHINGS & TOOLS 639.18 36,920.57 .00 (              36,920.57) .0

TOTAL EMERGENCY PROTECTIVE MEASURES 5,900.71 764,516.04 .00 (            764,516.04) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 5,900.71 764,516.04 .00 (            764,516.04) .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (                5,900.71) (            764,516.04) .00 764,516.04 .0

41



City of Cordova

Cordova Center

4/30/2012

2012 2012

Total Project Prior Years Current year Current year

Account Number Account Title Budget Actual Budget Actual

426-300-40325 Investment Earnings 90,770.90 90,770.90 0.00 0.00

426-300-42195 Cordova Center Design 23,109.00 23,109.00 0.00 0.00

426-300-42200 Not Yet Known 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-300-43000 Deferred Revenue 0.00 (387,361.70) 387,361.70 387,361.70

426-310-42410 DOI FY03 S.2708 994,000.00 994,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-42420 HUD EDI B-04-SP-AK-0040 994,100.00 994,100.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-42430 DCCED 05-DC-039 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-42440 DCCED 06-DC-101 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-42450 DCCED 10-DC-011 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-42460 DCCED 11-DC-197 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-42470 DCCED 11-DC-626 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-310-45480 EVOSTC - Fed Grant 7,000,000.00 0.00 7,000,000.00 846,628.67

426-390-49998 Transfer from Permanent Fund 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-390-49999 Transfer from General Fund    0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Revenue 17,126,979.90 9,739,618.20 7,387,361.70 1,233,990.37

426-401-00000 Phse I - From City Money 1,500,000.00 425,302.53 1,068,600.02 71,221.39

426-402-00000 Phse II - From City Money 0.00 6,097.45 0.00 0.00

426-411-00000 Phse I - DOI FY03 S.2708 994,000.00 994,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-412-00000 Phse II - DOI FY03 S.2708 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-421-00000 Phse I - HUDEDI B04SP-AK-0040 994,100.00 994,100.00 0.00 0.00

426-422-00000 Phse II - HUDEDI B04SP-AK-0040 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-431-00000 Phse I - DCCED 05-DC-039 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-432-00000 Phse II - DCCED 05-DC-039 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-441-00000 Phse I - DCCED 06-DC-101 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-442-00000 Phse II DCCED 06-DC-101 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-451-00000 Phse I - DCCED 10-DC-011 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-452-00000 Phse II - DCCED 10-DC-011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-461-00000 Phse I - DCCED 11-DC-197 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-462-00000 Phse II - DCCED 11-DC-197 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-471-00000 Phse I - DCCED 11-DC-626 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00 0.00

426-472-00000 Phse II - DCCED 11-DC-626 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-481-00000 Phse I - EVOSTC 7,000,000.00 681,238.32 6,318,761.68 165,390.35

426-482-00000 Phse II - EVOSTC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

426-901-00000 Interfund Transfers Out 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Expenditures 17,013,100.00 9,625,738.30 7,387,361.70 236,611.74

Net Totals 113,879.90 113,879.90 0.00 997,378.63

42



City of Cordova 2012 BUDGET - SCHOOL PROJECT
Period: 04/12

State Per GL Per GL Per GL
Account Number Account Title Budget Total Available 2008 - 2011 2012

School Capital Project

Revenue
420-300-40100 Bond Issue Proceeds 16,610,704.59 16,610,704.59 16,610,704.59 .00
420-300-40325 Investment Earnings .00 262,168.89 262,168.89 .00
420-300-43000 Deferred Revenue .00 .00 823,948.04- 823,948.04
Transfers
420-393-41005 Transfer to School Dist .00 200,000.00- 200,000.00- .00

          Total Revenue: 16,610,704.59 16,672,873.48 15,848,925.44 823,948.04

Mt Eccles Gym Addition
420-403-50220 CM (by consultant) 91,982.00 91,982.00 91,982.00 .00
420-403-52100 Land Purchase 205,759.91 205,759.91 205,759.91 .00
420-403-52110 Site Investigation .00 .00 .00 .00
420-403-52140 Design Services 413,919.00 413,919.00 413,919.00 .00
420-403-52150 Construction 6,090,955.00 6,084,932.89 6,084,932.89 .00
420-403-52160 Equipment 151,222.00 151,222.00 151,222.00 .00
420-403-52170 District Admn Overhead 229,955.00 243,536.97 243,536.97 .00
420-403-52180 Art 22,996.00 22,996.00 22,996.00 .00
420-403-52190 Project Contingency .00 .00 .00 .00

          Total Mt Eccles Gym Addition: 7,206,788.91 7,214,348.77 7,214,348.77 .00

Mt Eccles Renovation
420-405-50220 CM (by consultant) 166,730.00 166,730.00 166,730.00 .00
420-405-52140 Design Services 833,650.00 830,398.89 830,398.89 .00
420-405-52150 Construction 7,491,425.00 7,491,425.00 6,668,354.05 .00
420-405-52160 Equipment 487,202.00 487,202.00 487,202.00 .00
420-405-52170 District Admn Overhead 416,825.00 441,085.82 440,208.73 9,264.20
420-405-52180 Art 41,683.00 41,683.00 41,683.00 .00
420-405-52190 Project Conteingency .00 .00 .00 .00

          Total Mt Eccles Renovation: 9,437,515.00 9,458,524.71 8,634,576.67 9,264.20

          Total Expenditure: 16,644,303.91 16,672,873.48 15,848,925.44 9,264.20

Net Grand Totals: 33,599.32- .00.00 814,683.84

43



44



	   	   	   	   	   	   	   	  

	   	   	   	   	   	         PO Box 705
               Cordova, Alaska 
                    907-424-5800 x225 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council 
City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Avenue 
Cordova, Alaska 99574 
 
April 26, 2012 
 
Dear City of Cordova, 
 
The Prince William Sound Science Center has rented property at 300 Breakwater 
Avenue from the City of Cordova for many years. PWSSC has been pleased to 
serve the research and education needs of Cordova and other communities that 
depend on renewable resources of Prince William Sound and the Northern Gulf 
of Alaska since 1989. We look forward to continuing our partnership with the City 
of Cordova and maintaining our presence as a key employer in the community. 
 
It is in the best interest of both the city and the Science Center to support 
PWSSC’s use of the property we currently occupy. Therefore, per our 
conversation at the city council meeting on April 4th, 2012, we respectfully 
request that you renew the Prince William Sound Science Center's building rental 
agreement under the previous terms for the facility we occupy at 300 Breakwater 
Avenue. 
 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
Katrina Hoffman 
President and CEO 
Prince William Sound Science Center 
khoffman@pwssc.org 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



May 6, 2012 
 
Mr. Mayor and Council members: 
  
I read in the Cordova Times that council member Kacsh is compelled to resign from 
office due to nepotism provisions in the City Charter.  I further understand that Vice 
Mayor Reggiani finds himself in a similar position and might also be forced to resign 
from service.  I recall another, similar circumstance with council member Cheshier some 
time ago.  As a voter who supported all of these fine volunteers I am concerned that if 
we allow these ridiculous pretenses of resignation and possible reappointment to 
continue, it has the potential to nullify the will of the voters and discourage other willing 
citizens from serving their community.  It is time to fix this. 
  
This is a small community with limited employment options and a high degree of 
personal accountability.  Perhaps there were at one time good reasons to adopt the 
confusing language of Section 4-3 of the Cordova City Charter but given the repeated 
occurrences of the alleged conflicts recounted above, it’s clearly time to consider 
whether it remains a useful check on the conduct of our elected officials or a hindrance 
to their effectiveness.  Traditional definitions of nepotism are centered on the “hire/fire” 
relationship and the concept of “without merit”.  In our situation, the Council has two 
employees – the City Manager and Clerk – and familial links along this line of authority 
and meritless appointment are clearly inappropriate.  Further down the line, while the 
potential for patronage always exists, we must balance this with the realities of our small 
town.  Certainly, competitive hire for summer/seasonal jobs for young people should not 
and cannot reasonably form the basis of a nepotism argument. 
  
I encourage the Council to develop more suitable Charter language – that which avoids 
pointless Council resignations – and put it before the voters at the first opportunity.  In 
the interim, perhaps City legal counsel should be asked to devise an acceptable legal 
strategy and interpretation of Section 4-3 which facilitates the functioning of the Council 
rather than the opposite.  On-the-record disclosure will suffice for most instances where 
there is an appearance of conflict. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
George 
  
PS:  I am not available for committee work on this subject. 
  
George Covel 
Sea-Run Fisheries 
P.O. Box 984 
Cordova, AK  99574 
907-424-7469 ph 
907-253-7469 cell 
searun@gci.net 
 

52



 -1- 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: CITY OF CORDOVA CITY COUNCIL 
 

FROM: HOLLY C. WELLS, BIRCH HORTON BITTNER & CHEROT 
 

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 05-12-25 
 

CLIENT: CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
 

FILE NO.: 401,777.199 
 

DATE: MAY 9, 2012 

Purpose of City of Cordova Resolution No. 05-12-25 

The City of Cordova (“City”) is one of the largest employers in Cordova and has a 
small population. As a result, there is a relatively small pool of candidates for City 
Council, Mayor, and City Manager as well as for all other City positions. The restriction 
in Section 4-3 of the City Charter prohibits the City Manager, Mayor or Council from 
hiring certain family members of a City Council Member, the Mayor or the City Manager.  
This restriction is unrealistic for a community Cordova’s size and may discourage 
members of the community from applying or running for executive and legislative 
positions within the City. It also may lead to untimely resignations of duly elected City 
officials. For these reasons, Resolution No. 05-12-25 is before you for consideration to 
place such a Charter amendment on the ballot of the next Regular Election. If the voters 
so choose, the prohibition in the City Charter against employing family members of City 
Council members, the Mayor and/or the City Manager will be removed. 

 

53



DRAFT 

Res 05-12-25 
Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION 05-12-25 

 

A RESOLUTION PLACING A BALLOT PROPOSITION BEFORE THE VOTERS AT 

THE REGULAR ELECTION ON MARCH 5, 2013 AMENDING ARTICLE IV, 

SECTION 4-3 TO REMOVE THE PROHIBITION OF EMPLOYMENT OF COUNCIL 

MEMBER, CITY MANAGER, AND MAYOR FAMILY MEMBERS 

 

 WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that the City of Cordova (“City”) is one of the 

largest employers in the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes that a restriction upon the hiring of certain 

family members of City Council members, the Mayor, and the City Manager discourages 

members of the community from applying or running for such positions and leads to untimely 

resignations of duly elected City officials; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this restriction on Council member, Mayor and City Manager family 

member applicants limits the pool of qualified candidates for City positions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Cordova to 

amend Charter Section 4-3 to remove restrictions on employment of Council Member, Mayor, 

and City Manager family members for the above stated reasons. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the voters of the City be presented with 
a charter amendment to amend Article IV, Section 4-3 as set out below [deleted language 
stricken through]:   
 

 Charter Section 4-3. Nepotism, hHold more than one office or position. 

Neither the city manager, the council nor any other authority of the city government, may 
appoint or elect any person related to the mayor, to any councilman, to the city manager, 
or to himself, or, in the case of a plural authority, to one of its members, by affinity or 
consanguinity within the third degree, to any office or position of profit in the city 
government; but this shall not prohibit an officer or employee from continuing in the 
service of the city.  

Except as may be otherwise provided by this charter or by ordinance, a person may hold 
more than one office or position in the city government. The city manager may hold more 
than one such office or position through appointment by himself, by the council or by 
other city authority having power to fill the particular office or position, subject to any 
regulation which the council may make by ordinance. The city manager may not receive 
compensation for service in such other offices and positions. The council may, by 
ordinance, provide that the city manager shall hold ex-officio any designated 

54



DRAFT 

Res 05-12-25 
Page 2 of 2 

administrative office or offices subordinate to the city manager as well as other 
designated compatible city offices, notwithstanding any other provision of this charter.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th DAY OF MAY, 2012. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       James Kallander, Mayor 

       

      Attest: 

       ________________________________ 

       Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

55



 

A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:    May 1, 2012 
 
TO:       Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT:      2012 Property Assessment Roll Certification   
 

 
Attached is the Clerk’s certification of the 2012 property assessment roll with the reports of total 
assessed value, taxable value and exempt value. A brief analysis follows: 
  

1) in ten years Cordova’s total assessed value has gone up an average of 
3.8% per year yet taxes collected have gone up an average of 1.4% per 
year over the same 10 years (hugely due to the $500K cut between 
2010 and 2011) 

2) taxable vs. exempt has been slowly leaning toward taxable; now at 
55.5% : 44.5% best explanation of this is the sale of City land and the 
decrease in senior exempt properties (i.e. both being sold into taxable 
ownership) 

 

A “mill rate scenarios” worksheet has been provided to assist Council in establishing a mill rate 
for the 2012 tax year. The 2012 budget includes $1.5 million for property tax revenues. The 
dollar amount in the column second from the right, inside the box, indicates the total that would 
be collected at the specified mill rates. Council needs to establish the mill rate by June 15, 2011. 
I will bring a resolution to the June 6, 2012 meeting for your approval. I ask that you consider 
giving direction tonight as to what other scenarios you would like to see on the worksheet 
provided for the June 6 Regular Meeting.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt certification of the 2012 assessment roll. 
 
REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority voice vote. 
 
 

56



2012 % 2011 % 2010 %

TOTAL LAND $76,701,400 26.13% $76,537,700 26.62% $75,303,050 27.82%

TOTAL I MPROVEMENTS $216,785,860 73.87% $210,943,760 73.38% $195,354,440 72.18%

TOTAL ASSESSED VALUE $293,487,260 100% $287,481,460 100% $270,657,490 100%

TOTAL EXEMPTI ONS $130,722,764 44.54% $128,619,400 44.74% $124,237,950 45.90%

TOTAL TAXABLE $162,764,496 55.46% $158,862,060 55.26% $146,419,540 54.10%

EXEMPTI ONS:

      CI TY $65,527,700 50.13% $63,665,000 49.50% $62,011,200 49.91%

      STATE $12,211,300 9.34% $11,895,600 9.25% $10,960,700 8.82%

      FEDERAL $21,165,000 16.19% $20,752,500 16.13% $20,443,200 16.45%

      SENI ORS/ D-V $13,253,064 10.14% $13,835,900 10.76% $12,326,200 9.92%

      NATI VE CORPS $9,836,200 7.52% $9,798,800 7.62% $10,083,350 8.12%

      NON-PROFI TS $4,682,900 3.58% $4,494,400 3.49% $4,463,100 3.59%

      CHURCHES $4,046,600 3.10% $4,177,200 3.25% $3,950,200 3.18%

TOTAL EXEMPTI ONS $130,722,764 100% $128,619,400 100% $124,237,950 100%

THREE YEARS COMPARI SON OF EXEMPT VALUE TO TAXABLE VALUE

50.13%

9.34%

16.19%

10.14%

7.52%

3.58%
3.10%

      CITY

      STATE

      FEDERAL

      SENIORS/D‐V

      NATIVE CORPS

      NON‐PROFITS

      CHURCHES

2012 EXEMPTION CATEGORIES

44.54%

55.46%

TOTAL EXEMPTIONS

TOTAL TAXABLE

2012 EXEMPT VS. TAXABLE

57



TAX PROP TAX % MI LL TAXABLE % EXEMPTED % TOTAL %

YEAR COLLECTED chg RATES ASSESSMENT chg ASSESSMENT chg ASSESSMENT chg

2002 $1,398,363 13.50 & 12.50 $105,559,408 $97,613,212 $203,172,620

2003 $1,455,977 4.1% 13.50 & 12.50 $109,433,718 3.7% $97,741,372 0.1% $207,175,090 2.0%

2004 $1,493,619 2.6% 14.00 & 13.00 $109,591,140 0.1% $100,413,210 2.7% $210,004,350 1.4%

2005 $1,584,360 6.1% 14.00 & 13.00 $114,867,647 4.8% $106,751,693 6.3% $221,619,340 5.5%

2006 $1,599,752 1.0% 13.35 & 12.35 $121,859,603 6.1% $115,678,687 8.4% $237,538,290 7.2%

2007 $1,621,154 1.3% 13.35 & 12.35 $123,424,858 1.3% $114,058,652 -1.4% $237,483,510 0.0%

2008 $1,660,068 2.4% 13.00 & 12.00 $129,773,078 5.1% $122,555,522 7.4% $252,328,600 6.3%

2009 $1,756,300 5.8% 14.50 & 13.50 $137,305,360 5.8% $123,808,050 1.0% $261,113,410 3.5%

2010 $2,093,027 19.2% 13.90 & 12.90 $146,419,540 6.6% $124,237,950 0.3% $270,657,490 3.7%

2011 $1,506,150 -28.0% 9.70 & 8.70 $158,862,060 8.5% $128,619,400 3.5% $287,481,460 6.2%

2012 unknown not yet set $162,764,496 2.5% $130,722,764 $293,487,260 2.1%

2012 tbd ANNEXED AREA $34,264,000 $23,961,400 $58,225,400

2012 tbd ORIG CITY AREA $128,500,496 $106,761,364 $235,261,860

average % changes  1.4% 4.5% 2.8% 3.8%

over 10 years

CI TY OF CORDOVA

TEN YEARS OF PROPERTY ASSESSMENTS COMPARI SON

58



In Town Total Taxable $128,500,496.00 $1,246,454.81

in town mill rate 9.7

Out of Town Total Taxable $34,264,000.00 $298,096.80

out of town mill rate 8.7

total taxable $162,764,496.00 $1,544,551.61 TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES

Total Tax Revenue by Area
In Town Total Taxable $128,500,496.00 $1,211,759.68

in town mill rate 9.43

Out of Town Total Taxable $34,264,000.00 $288,845.52

out of town mill rate 8.43

total taxable $162,764,496.00 $1,500,605.20 TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES

Total Tax Revenue by Area
In Town Total Taxable $128,500,496.00 $1,408,365.44

in town mill rate 10.96

Out of Town Total Taxable $34,264,000.00 $341,269.44

out of town mill rate 9.96

total taxable $162,764,496.00 $1,749,634.88 TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES

Total Tax Revenue by Area
In Town Total Taxable $128,500,496.00 $1,606,256.20

in town mill rate 12.50

Out of Town Total Taxable $34,264,000.00 $394,036.00

out of town mill rate 11.50

total taxable $162,764,496.00 $2,000,292.20 TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES

TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE IS $162,764,496, THEREFORE,
EACH MILL GAINS $162,764.50 IN PROPERTY TAXES

IF MILL RATES STAY THE SAME AS LAST YEAR

mill rate decrease of .27 mills or 3%

mill rate increase of 2.8 mills or 29%

TO GET CLOSEST TO $1.75M OR $250K MORE THAN BUDGETED
mill rate increase of 1.26 mills or 13%

TO GET $2M OR $500K MORE THAN BUDGETED

Total Tax Revenue by Area

CLOSEST TO BUDGETED REVENUE AMOUNT OF $1.5M

59



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 May 8, 2012 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Boardwalks 
 

CMC 5.12.040  “Council approval of contracts” says: 
 

No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than fifteen thousand 

dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth the following 

essential terms of the contract: 

A.   The identity of the contractor; 

B.   The contract price; 

C.   The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract; and 

D.   The time for performance under the contract. 

 
I recommend the city enter into a contract with DHI Consulting Engineers of Anchorage, Alaska, to 

perform professional services associated with preliminary design for harbor boardwalks.  
 

The contract price is $26,400 lump sum for: Fees – Site Survey thru Construction Cost Estimate.  

The contract estimate price is $2,600 for: Reimbursable Items.  
 

The nature and quantity of the performance the city shall receive is set forth in the attached “Cordova 

Boardwalk Improvements – Scope of Service and Fee Proposal” (EXHIBIT A)  
 

The time for performance under the contract is estimated to be 8 weeks from authorization to proceed.  
 

Recommended action: Voice Vote.  

I move to direct the City Manager to enter into a contract (EXHIBIT B) with DHI Consulting Engineers 

for professional services to perform a preliminary design for harbor boardwalks.  

 

Thank you, 
 

Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

60



61

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text



62



63

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 May 8, 2012 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Shipyard Fill Permitting 
 

CMC 5.12.040  “Council approval of contracts” says: 
 

No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than fifteen thousand 

dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth the following 

essential terms of the contract: 

A.   The identity of the contractor; 

B.   The contract price; 

C.   The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract; and 

D.   The time for performance under the contract. 

 
I recommend the city enter into a contract with DHI Consulting Engineers of Anchorage, Alaska, to 

perform professional services to obtain a Corps of Engineers permit to fill tidelands adjacent to the 

City’s current shipyard.  
 

The contract price is $21,064 lump sum for: Fees – Permit Filing thru Final Permit Coordination.  

The contract estimate price is $1,100 for: Reimbursable Items.  
 

The nature and quantity of the performance the city shall receive is set forth in the attached “North 

Tideland Fill Project – Scope of Service and Fee Proposal” (EXHIBIT A)  
 

The time for performance under the contract is estimated to be: 

Tasks 1 & 2 - 5 weeks from authorization to proceed.  

Task 3 – variable depending on public comment. 
 

Recommended action: Voice Vote.  

I move to direct the City Manager to enter into a contract (EXHIBIT B) with DHI Consulting Engineers 

for professional services to perform permitting for a tideland fill adjacent to the City’s current shipyard.  

 

Thank you, 
 

Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

73



74

mark
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



75



76

mark
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



 

Memorandum 

To: Mayor Kallander, City Council and interested parties 

From: Faith Wheeler-Jeppson, Assistant Planner 

Date: 5/10/2012 

Re:  Proposed Road Addressing, Naming, and Signing Policy 

Attachments   

Draft Road Addressing, Naming, and Signing Policy 
 

 

 

The City of Cordova recognizes that a geographically precise and accurate addressing system is 
paramount to a quick and efficient emergency response. Proper addressing and street naming is 
the backbone of the 911 system and it is the primary element that allows 911 dispatchers and 
responders to pinpoint an emergency location as quickly as possible. Precise addressing also 
contributes to effective governmental operations since a majority of government data is location 
specific.  
 
On April 30, 2012 the E911 Committee met and reviewed the proposed Addressing Policy, their 
comments are in the Memo dated May 2, 2012 from Deputy Clerk Robyn Kinkaid. 
 
On May 8, 2012 the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed Addressing Policy; the 
following motion was made “M/Srb S/McGann to approve.”  
 
Staff is asking City Council to review the attached proposed Addressing Policy and provide 
direction. 
 
 
 
 

 

84



        DRAFT  

DRAFT 
City of Cordova 
Road Addressing, Naming and Signing Policy 

  Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF CORDOVA 
ROAD ADDRESSING, NAMING, AND SIGNING POLICY 

 
1. INTENT OF REGULATIONS 
 

1.1 To establish and maintain a system for the assignment, naming and identification of roads and 
numerical addresses for the City of Cordova which will improve the efficiency of locating a property by 
use of a street name and address. 

 

1.2 To state the policies of the City regarding addressing new projects, re-addressing areas, naming new 
roads, numbering roads, naming or renaming existing roads, and road and address signage. 
 

1.3 To state the responsibility of City Departments in addressing, road naming, and road signage. 
 

1.4 These regulations do not purport to regulate the names of, addressing on, or signage for roads outside 
of the municipality of the City of Cordova. 

 

2.   ROAD NAMES AND OTHER DESIGNATIONS 
 

2.1 Unique Road Names and Other Designations. Every road existing, proposed, or constructed which 
provides, will provide, or is proposed to provide access to two or more lots, as defined in the City of 
Cordova Zoning Resolution, in the City of Cordova shall be identified with a unique road name or other 
designation so as to clearly identify and distinguish such road from every other road in the City of 
Cordova. 
 

2.2 Other Government Roads. Designations for public roads such as Federal Highways, State Highways, 
and Public Lands Agency Roads, shall be approved and assigned by the State of Alaska.  
 

2.3 Other Public Roads and Private Roads. The following shall be approved and assigned by the City of 
Cordova pursuant to this Policy and the appropriate City development approval processes, which may 
include, without limitation, subdivision or plat review pursuant to City Subdivision Regulations: (1) 
names of roads in the City of Cordova dedicated to and accepted for public as shown on the Official City 
Road Map or other government road system and (2) names of private roads in the City of Cordova 
dedicated or intended for the benefit or use of purchasers or owners of Lots. 
 

2.4 Driveways. Driveways shall not be required to be identified by a separate road name, but shall be 
required to comply with other signage and addressing requirements of this Policy. “Driveway” means any 
road which provides, will provide, or is proposed to provide direct access to only one lot from any other 
road which provides access to more than one lot.  
 

2.5 Master List and Map. The Planning Department and the Public Safety Department shall maintain a 
master list and map of all roads within the City which identifies each road by its unique name or 
designation and its location. Once a road name or other designation is approved and assigned, that name 
shall not be used for any other road in the City of Cordova, unless otherwise noted. 
 

2.6 Criteria for Naming Roads. The following criteria shall be considered in approving and assigning 
names for roads identified in Section 2.3. It is the intent and goal of the City of Cordova that no road in the 
City shall have a name which duplicates the name of any other road in the City, unless otherwise noted.  

A. The City Planning Department shall have the final authority to approve and assign road names 
for roads within the municipality of Cordova. However, the City will approve and assign 
reasonable road names, not to exceed 18 letters and/or spaces proposed by the applicant, 
developer, or the record owner(s) of land accessed by such road, as the case may be, so long as 
the name does not duplicate the name of any other road in the City. 

85



        DRAFT  

DRAFT 
City of Cordova 
Road Addressing, Naming and Signing Policy 

  Page 2 of 6 

B. “Reasonable” shall mean that the choice of name for the road in question may include: (1) 
Names currently or formerly identified with the general area; (2) Pioneers of the State or 
citizens who have made a significant community contribution; (3) Names from a War Casualty 
Lists; (4) Thematic names (e.g. nautical, sporting etc.). Given/first and surname combinations 
are suitable only if the surname alone cannot be used because of duplication. All name 
proposals must clearly identify the origin of the name. Road names should consider the 
geographical location. For example, “Hill Top Road” should not be used if the location is in a 
valley or does not lead to a hill top. 

C. “Duplicate” shall mean that the road in question either has the identical name, has a name 
which because of its pronunciation or spelling is deceptively similar to another name, or has an 
identical name followed by a different designating suffix, i.e., Willow Street and Willow Road. 

D. To the extent possible the names of new or renamed roads in the City of Cordova should be 
consistent with the historical, cultural, geographical, or natural significance of the area. Roads 
within a neighborhood are encouraged to use a consistent theme in their names. 

E. New roads or renamed roads in the City should be given a designating suffix which indicates 
the type of road: 

 
  Avenue:        A wide, principal thoroughfare leading from a main road. 
  Boulevard:    A wide street, often divided by a median. 

Circle:           A road that circles back to its beginning point or to the same road from  
  which it starts. 

  Court:           A cul-de-sac or dead end road. 
  Drive:           A winding road. 
  Highway:     A designated state or federal route. 
  Lane:            A narrow road; an uninterrupted street ending in a cul-de-sac or dead end. 
  Loop:            See Circle. 
  Parkway:      A special scenic route or park drive. 
  Path:            A cul-de-sac or dead end road. Usually a road where automobile   
    transportation  is secondary to other forms of transportation, i.e. bicycles or 
    foot travel. 
  Place:           A short, usually narrow street; see Court. 
  Road:        A street or road for low volume traffic, local access road, primitive roads and  
    country roads. 
 Street:          Any public road; also see Avenues. 

Trail:            See Path. 
Way:            See Court.      

  

2.7 Procedure for Re-Assignment of Duplicate Road Names and Assignment of Names for Roads 
Without an Assigned Name. 
 

A. Whenever it comes to the attention to the City Planning Department or Public Safety 
Department that a road in the City has not been assigned a name or that the assigned name 
duplicates the name of any other road in the City, the Planning Department shall initiate 
proceedings to name or rename such road. 

B. The Planning department shall send written notice to the record owners of any land accessed 
by any road identified in section 2.7A. Such notice shall contain, at a minimum, the following: 

 

 A description or identification of the road(s) and property in question; 

86



        DRAFT  

DRAFT 
City of Cordova 
Road Addressing, Naming and Signing Policy 

  Page 3 of 6 

 A statement that the name of the road accessing the property duplicates the name of 
another in the City or that the road has not been assigned a name; 

 A statement or copy of the criteria to be used for naming or renaming roads, as set forth 
in sections 2.6 and 2.8; 

 A determination by the Planning Department and Public Safety Department that one or 
more of such roads must be named or renamed, identifying which road or roads are 
required to be named or renamed; 

 A notice of the time in which the record owners of land assessed by such road or roads 
identified for naming or renaming shall respond by petition for naming or renaming the 
identified road(s); 
 

C. Petition for Naming or Renaming Road(s). Within 30 days of the mailing of the notice in 
section 2.7B, the record owners of land assessed by any road required to be named or renamed 
shall submit to the Planning Department a Petition for Naming or Renaming Roads. Such 
Petition shall propose a name or new name for the road or roads required to be named or 
renamed, and shall be signed by the record owners of a minimum of 51% of all land assessed 
by such road or roads, or by the authorized representative of such owners, such as a 
Homeowners Association organized to act on behalf of such owners. If such owners of land 
cannot agree on one name, the Petition may contain a list of no more than three alternative 
names for any one road. 

D. Notice and Determination. Upon receipt of a Petition as provided in section 2.7C, or if no 
Petition was received within 30 days of the mailing of the notice required in section 2.7B, the 
Planning Department shall determine whether the existing name of the road duplicates any 
other road in the City, or that road in question has not been assigned a name. 
1. The Planning Department shall approve and assign any name proposed in such petition if it 

is found that such name is reasonable and does not duplicate the name of any other road 
within the Municipality of Cordova. In the case that no petition has been received within 30 
days of the mailing of the notice required in section 2.7B, or if it has been determined that 
the name proposed in the petition is a duplicate, a reasonable name shall be selected and 
assigned pursuant to the guidelines contained in section 2.6. 

2. Once a road name is approved and assigned pursuant to this section the Planning 
Department and the Public Safety Department shall make a notation of such name or 
changed name on the master list and map of all roads in the Municipality of Cordova. 

 

2.8 Criteria for Renaming Roads. Once it has been determined that the name of a road duplicates the 
name of any other road in the City, the following criteria shall be considered and balanced in determining 
whether a road is required or renamed: 
 

1. The number of residences, businesses, or buildable lots accessed by each of the roads with 
duplicate names. 

2. The respective periods of times the roads with duplicate names have had such names. 
3. Whether there are areas along the road that also need to be re-addressed. 
4. Whether the roads with duplicate names are in the same emergency response area or are 

geographically related. 
5. Whether the name of either road with duplicate names is inherently or traditionally identified 

with natural features, historical events or a business along the road. 
6. Whether either road with a duplicate name has been constructed and the extent to which 

buildable lots accessed by such roads have been developed. 

87



        DRAFT  

DRAFT 
City of Cordova 
Road Addressing, Naming and Signing Policy 

  Page 4 of 6 

7. The ease with which one of the roads with duplicate names may be changed to a similar but not 
deceptively similar name.  
 

2.9 Road Name Required Prior to Building Permit. No building permit shall be issued for any 
construction on property in City unless the road accessing such property has been assigned a name 
pursuant to this policy. The form of Building Permit used by the City shall contain a space for the notation 
of whether the road has been assigned a name pursuant to this policy, and such space shall be filled in by 
the Planning Department prior to the issuance of the building permit. 
 

3. ROAD IDENTIFICATION SIGNS 
 

3.1 Road signs identifying the name or designation of all roads in the City shall be posted at the 
intersections of all roads. 
 

A. Road identification signs for City roads shall have a green base and white letters. These 
signs shall be reflective and the letters or numbers shall be five inches in height. Such 
signage shall be required only on roads which have been constructed and which are 
used to access dwelling units for which building permits have been issued. Such 
signage shall be installed and maintained by the City of Cordova Public Works 
Department, PROVIDED however, that the installation and maintenance by the Public 
Works Department of road signs on any public road shall not be evidence of any 
obligation or commitment on the City top perform road maintenance on such roads. 

B. Road identification signs for private roads in the City shall have a brown base with 
white letters. These signs shall be reflective and the letters or number shall be five 
inches in height. Such signage shall be required only on roads which have been 
constructed and which are used to access dwelling units for which building permits 
have been issued. Purchasing, installation and maintenance shall be the responsibility of 
the record owner(s) of property adjacent to and accessed by such road. The Public 
Works Department may assist in the location of road signs. Signage may not be placed 
in a public right-of-way. No final inspection or certificate of occupancy shall be 
performed or issued for any construction a buildable lot accessed by any private road 
unless the appropriate signage pursuant to this section 3.1B is in place. 

C. Signage for Federal and State Highways shall be the responsibility of the appropriate 
Federal or State agency responsible for such Highway. 

 

4. ADDRESSING  
 

4.1 Assignment of Address Numbers. All lots within the Municipality of Cordova shall have a numerical 
addressed assigned pursuant to this policy. 

 

A. Assignment of address numbers shall be performed by the City or Cordova Planning 
Department (1) at the time of creation of lots pursuant to any City development 
approval process, (2) at the time of the issuance of a Building Permit for any lot without 
an address, or (3) at such times as it comes to the attention of the Planning department 
that a lot requires an address number or it is required to be renumbered. A unique 
address number shall be determined pursuant to the established system for each 
buildable lot in the City. 

B. Addressing shall commence from Mile 0 of the Copper River Highway and increase 
incrementally by distance or platted block from that point as described herein; 
 

88



        DRAFT  

DRAFT 
City of Cordova 
Road Addressing, Naming and Signing Policy 

  Page 5 of 6 

The Copper River Highway shall serve as the point of origination for addressing 
purposes for streets or roads that intersect it; 
 

Addresses shall be assigned such that even numbered addresses will be on the South or 
East side of the street, as appropriate for the roadway. The North or West sides of 
streets shall be assigned odd numbered addresses. 
 

Within the greater downtown area, addresses will be assigned to be consistent with 
existing platted streets that are named with a number, i.e. Second Street, Third Street, 
etc. For example, addressed parcels lying between Copper River Highway (First Street) 
and Second Street will be assigned incremental addresses within the one hundred block; 
those parcels lying between Second Street and Third Street would be assigned 
incremental addresses within the two hundred block, etc.  
 

Addressing of parcels fronting north/south streets within the greater downtown district 
shall be incrementally numbered consistent with the addressing of the Copper River 
Highway lying due east or due west of that block. i.e. Parcels lying on Second Street, 
Third Street, Fourth Street, etc. that are between Adams Ave. and Browning Ave. will 
all be numbered consistent with the block of parcels on the Copper River Highway 
between Adams and Browning Avenues, namely the six-hundred block. 
  

Outside the greater downtown district, addressing shall be assigned, incrementally, as 
described above and will be guided by the distance from Mile Zero of the Copper River 
Highway, or the distance from the Copper River Highway, as applicable. I.E. parcels 
between Mile 3.5 and 3.6 would be incrementally numbered within the 3500 block, 
those between Mile 3.6 and 3.7 would be numbered within the 3600 block, etc. 
 

C.  No building permit shall be issued for any construction on any lot in the City unless an 
address has been assigned for the lot pursuant to this policy. The form of Building 
Permit used by the City shall contain a space for the notation of whether the lot has 
been assigned an address pursuant to this policy, ad such space shall be filled in by the 
Planning Department prior to the issuance of the Building Permit. 

 

D. The following are specifications for addressing certain types of developments:  
 

Multiple units on a lot: Unless otherwise provided herein, where there are 
multiple units within a single structure, each structure will receive a street 
address and each unit shall receive a unit designator. The address for the 
individual units shall be the building address and the unit designator. 
 

Multiple but separate units located on a single lot shall have one street 
address and unit designator. 
 

Commercial area, indoor: Where each unit in the commercial area has a 
separate outdoor entrance, each unit will be given a separate address. Where 
multiple commercial units are served by a common entrance, or entrances, 
each unit shall be addressed with a common street address and unit 
designator. 
 

Duplexes: Separate addresses shall be given for each unit, except where 
there are a mixture of duplexes and multifamily unit, unit numbers may be 
assigned to the duplexes when deemed necessary to avoid confusion. 
 

89



        DRAFT  

DRAFT 
City of Cordova 
Road Addressing, Naming and Signing Policy 

  Page 6 of 6 

Mobile Home Parks: One address shall be given for the entire development. 
Individual mobile home sites shall use both the address for the development 
and the space number. 
 

Single Family Residence: A separate address shall be given for each 
dwelling. 

 

E. The following are situations where the renumbering of addresses may be required: 
1. Addresses are not sequential; 
2. Addresses need to be changed or regrided after a road name is assigned or 

reassigned; 
3. Lots were created without assignment of road names or addresses. 

 

4.2 Address Number Signage. All residences and businesses shall display address numbers or characters 
which identify the property address and are plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the 
property.   
 

A. Numbers shall be displayed clearly from the road at all times. Consideration 
should be made in regard to visibility to seasonal changes, landscaping, daylight 
and evening light. For buildings which are not visible from the street or located 
more than fifty feet from the shoulder or curb of the street, address characters 
shall be affixed to a free-standing sign or post located adjacent to the road in 
which the property is addressed. The sign or post shall be located twenty five 
feet or less from the shoulder or curb of the road at the point of access. The post 
shall be a minimum of five feet in height from the ground and not to exceed 
seven feet in height. Numbers may be placed vertically and read from top to 
bottom if a post is used, or the numbers may be placed horizontally on a sign 
affixed to the post. All address characters shall be of a color and/or material that 
contrasts with the background on which they are mounted, however, the City 
recommends the use of reflective numbers or characters to enhance visibility at 
night. All characters and number shall be at least four inches in height unless 
they are reflective in which case they may be as small as three inches in height. 

 

B. Addresses shall be posted prior to construction of a new building or as soon as 
the address is issued by the Planning Department. 

 

C. It shall be the responsibility of the owner of a lot to maintain address signage 
pursuant to this policy.  

 
 

90



Memorandum 
To:  City Council 
From:  Sam Greenwood, City Planner 
Date:  5/10/2012 
Re:  Ground Snow Load Increase  
 
PART I. BACKGROUND: 
The Planning and Zoning commissioners requested a review of the current ground snow 
load for Cordova. At the April 10th   P&Z meeting information was provided about ground 
snow load, how it was calculated and determined. Josh Hallquist also attended the 
meeting and provided information and showed the calculations that were done for the 
Cordova Center. At this meeting it was decided that in order to determine if the snow 
load needed to be increased that an analysis of the snow pack data for Cordova needed to 
be done.  I asked Steve Witsoe (Hoots) the City’s current avalanche expert to provide the 
information for the commission.  He included a write up in packet and presented his data 
at the May 8, 2012 P&Z meeting (included). 
 
The impact on cost to building was also discussed there an estimated cost increase of 3% 
to 4% for residential roof construction. Also an metal building salesman provide a rough 
estimate of 25% increase but mostly due to that additional steel, weight and shipping cost 
the actual cost of labor would not increase greatly.  
 
PART II.  GENERAL INFORMATION:  

 
The Planning and Zoning commission recommends increasing the ground snow requirement from 
100 pounds per square foot ground snow load to 150 pounds per square foot ground snow load.  

 
PART III. SUGGESTED MOTION: 

 
“I move city council accept resolution 12-03 from the Planning and Zoning Commission.” 
 

 

 
 

91



92



Ground Snow Load Analysis for the City of Cordova

Addendum 5/7/12

R Pv=1-(1/R) -ln(-ln(Pv) y=10.857x(-ln(-ln(Pv)+20.913 ft/in conv lbs/ft3 snow densityPg (lbs/ft2)

50 0.98 3.90 63.28 0.08 62.5 0.4 131.83

 PACV Gumbel Distribution

y = 10.857x + 20.913

R
2
 = 0.9692

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

-2 -1 0 1 2 3 4 5

Maximum Height of Snow (in)

1910-2012

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

PACV Max HS

CEC Max HS

93



 

Ground Snow Load Analysis 
 

Prepared for: 

City of Cordova 

May 1st, 2012 

 

 

 
 

 
 Prepared by: 

Steve “Hoots” Witsoe 

 

94



Current snow load requirements for the City of Cordova are based on the International 

Building Code. Design snow loads for roofs are determined using ground snow load; pg. 

Ground snow loads for Alaska locations are set forth in Table 7-1, ASCE 7-05, with 

Cordova at 100 lbs/ft
2
. Interestingly, Cordova’s nearest neighbors have significantly larger 

ground snow loads, with Yakutat at 150, Valdez at 160, and Whittier at 300 lbs/ft2. 

Authorities having jurisdiction can also determine ground snow load using extreme value 

statistical analysis of data available with a 2 percent annual probability of being exceeded 

(50 year mean recurrence interval).
1
 

 

Weather data for Cordova is limited to CEC Orca Power Plant
2
, Mudhole Smith Airport

3
, 

Mt Eyak Snotel
4
, and personal observations

5
.  

 

For this analysis, 26 years of power plant data and 14 years of airport data was used. A 

larger dataset exists for the airport but was not accessible at the time. While weather can be 

quite different between the power plant and the airport, their annual maximum height of 

snow is very similar (see Figure 1). The power plant data was used over the airport data 

because the data set was larger and the snow heights were slightly higher. It should also be 

noted that there are no weather records available for Whitshed Road, where snow heights 

are generally accepted as higher than the rest of town. 

 

Figure 1 

Maximum Height of Snow (in)

1987-2012

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

CEC

PACV

 
 

Extreme value statistical analysis was done using Gumbel Distributions and Gringorten 

estimations.
6
 For CEC Power Plant data, the maximum height of snow =11.387x+19.381. 

Using a 50 year return period, x=-ln(-ln(1-(1/50)=3.90, and the height of snow = 63.8 in. 

(See figure 2) 

Figure 2 

Gumbel Distribution CEC Power Plant

y = 11.387x + 19.381

R
2
 = 0.9324

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

-2 -1 0 1 2 3 4 5
 

95



 

Mt Eyak Snotel had only 7 years of data, but gives insight into the affects of elevation on 

snow height. Its location is at approximately 1500 feet. The Snotel site, however, is prone 

to wind stripping. The nearby snow stake at the top of the ski hill has a similar elevation 

but offers a more wind loaded site, and shows the differences of snow height with site 

selection (see Figure 2).  

 

Figure 2 

Maximum Height of Snow (in)

2005-2012

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Mt Eyak Snotel

Top Station

 
 

Analysis of Mt Eyak Snotel data estimated a 50 year event at 156.9 inches, while Top 

Station data estimated 255.3 inches. An average of the data was used for the analysis to 

compensate for the differences between the datasets. Analysis of the average estimated a 

50 year event at 212.9 inches. 

 

Figure 4 

Gumbel Distribution Snotel & Top Station Average

y = 29.474x + 97.847

R2 = 0.9363

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

-2 -1 0 1 2 3 4 5
 

 

 

96



Ground snow load equals the maximum height of snow multiplied by the density of snow. 

Densities vary through the snow pack, so a single density is used to estimate the value. 

Industry standard varies from 30% to 50% density of water, with 40% the norm.
7
 With the 

amount of rain Cordova can receive in winter, 50% density may be realistic. However, by 

the time 50% density is reached the height of snow would be lower than the maximum. 

 

Using the Power Plant data for sea level, and the average of Snotel and Top Station data 

for 1500 vertical feet, a linear equation was used to interpolate the ground snow load 

versus elevation. This was done for both 40 % and 50% density (See Figure 5). 

 

Figure 5 

Snow Load (lbs/ft2) vs Elevation (ft)

40% density

50% density

y = 0.207x + 132.94

y = 0.2587x + 166.2

y = 0.2x + 140

y = 0.25x + 150

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 1200 1300 1400 1500

 
 

 

Conclusion 

 

The 40% and 50% linear equations offer a recommended range for ground snow loads with 

respect to elevation. To simplify the equations for easier use, the slope and intercept can be 

rounded. The first recommended equation closely resembles the 40% equation, while the 

second recommended equation is slightly more conservative. 

 

Recommended Ground Snow Load: 

 

pg (lbs/ft
2
) = 140 + (0.2 x Elevation in feet) 

 

pg (lbs/ft
2
) = 150 + (0.25 x Elevation in feet) 

 

97



CEC Orca Power Plant 
Water 
Year  Max HS  V m N Pv In (Pv) 

In (In 
(Pv))  

1987  11  7 1 26 0.02144 3.84252 -1.34613  

1988  13  7 2 26 0.05972 2.81802 -1.03603  

1989  31  9 3 26 0.09801 2.32269 -0.84273  

1990  39  10 4 26 0.13629 1.99294 -0.68961  

1991  32  11 5 26 0.17458 1.74538 -0.55697  

1992  29  11 6 26 0.21286 1.54710 -0.43638  

1993  38  13 7 26 0.25115 1.38171 -0.32332  

1994  9  15 8 26 0.28943 1.23983 -0.21497  

1995  29  17 9 26 0.32772 1.11560 -0.10939  

1996  30  21 10 26 0.36600 1.00511 -0.00510  

1997  11  21 11 26 0.40429 0.90563 0.09913  

1998  21  26 12 26 0.44257 0.81515 0.20438  

1999  44  29 13 26 0.48086 0.73218 0.31172  

2000  36  29 14 26 0.51914 0.65558 0.42224  

2001  7  29 15 26 0.55743 0.58442 0.53713  

2002  21  29 16 26 0.59571 0.51800 0.65778  

2003  15  30 17 26 0.63400 0.45571 0.78590  

2004  17  30 18 26 0.67228 0.39708 0.92362  

2005  10  31 19 26 0.71057 0.34169 1.07384  

2006  29  32 20 26 0.74885 0.28921 1.24059  

2007  33  33 21 26 0.78714 0.23935 1.42981  

2008  29  36 22 26 0.82542 0.19186 1.65098  

2009  30  38 23 26 0.86371 0.14652 1.92057  

2010  26  39 24 26 0.90199 0.10315 2.27156  

2011  7  44 25 26 0.94028 0.06158 2.78738  

2012  73  73 26 26 0.97856 0.02167 3.83170  
           

           

R  
Pv=1-
(1/R) 

-ln(-
ln(Pv) y=11.387x(-ln(-ln(Pv)+19.381 ft/in conv lbs/ft3 

snow 
density 

Pg 
(lbs/ft2) 

50  0.98 3.90 63.81   0.08 62.5 0.4 132.94 

 

 

Snotel & Top Station Average 
Water 
Year Snotel 

Top 
Station Average  V m N Pv In (Pv) 

In (In 
(Pv)) 

2006 69 90 79.5  79.5 1 7 0.07865 2.54273 -0.93324 

2007 87 110 98.5  92 2 7 0.21910 1.51822 -0.41754 

2008 121 144 132.5  93.5 3 7 0.35955 1.02290 -0.02264 

2009 83 104 93.5  98.5 4 7 0.50000 0.69315 0.36651 

2010 101 128 114.5  114.5 5 7 0.64045 0.44559 0.80837 

2011 80 104 92  132.5 6 7 0.78090 0.24731 1.39711 

2012 127 240 183.5  183.5 7 7 0.92135 0.08192 2.50205 

           
           

           

R 
Pv=1-
(1/R) -ln(-ln(Pv) 

y=11.387x(-ln(-
ln(Pv)+19.381 

ft/in 
conv lbs/ft3 

snow 
density 

Pg 
(lbs/ft2)  

50 0.98 3.90 212.85   0.08 62.5 0.4 443.44  

 

98



 

References 
 

 

 

1 ASCE 7-05 Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures 

 

 

2 CEC Orca Power Plant Weather Observations 

http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/oa/ncdc.html 

 

 

3 Mudhole Smith Airport Weather Observations 

http://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/oa/ncdc.html 

  

 

4 Mt Eyak Snotel Weather Observations 

http://ambcs.org/ 

 

 

5 Steve “Hoots” Witsoe 

 hoots@ctcak.net 

 

 

6 National Institute of Standards and Technology 

http://www.nist.gov/itl/sed/index.cfm 

 

 

7 Communication with Terry Onslow, Dave Hamre, and Pete Carter 

99



Pending agenda: 
 
Capital Priorities List Meeting – June 2012, September 2012, December 2012   
 
Resolution to set the 2012 Mill Rate – first meeting in June (June 6, 2012) – by Code must be 
 set by June 15 of the tax year  
 
Does June 6 meeting date work? If not, let’s cancel and schedule a special meeting again 
(maybe a Tuesday – i.e. Tuesday, June 5, 2012) 
 
Schedule executive sessions at upcoming meetings for Manager and Clerk evaluations 
 
July 4, 2012 is the first Wednesday in July – see Code below: 
 

3.12.020 - Meetings—Regular. 
The regular meeting of the council shall be held on the first and third Wednesday of every month. If such a 
Wednesday falls on a holiday or a day on which a quorum cannot be established, the regular meeting shall be 
held on the next business day on which a quorum can be established. If the council determines that only one 
meeting in any month is needed, the meeting on the third Wednesday of the month may be cancelled by the 
council at the first meeting of the same month. 

We should decide ahead of time when to hold that meeting. I believe we can say the next day 
that we can establish a quorum is July 18 and hold the regular meeting that day. Please advise 
and let’s have a motion and vote to decide the best course of action so I can proceed with 
appropriate public notice. 
 

Committees: 
 

Cordova Center Committee:  Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, VACANCY, Darrel Olsen, Larue 
 Barnes, VACANCY, Valerie Covel, David Roemhildt, Dan Logan, Nancy Bird, and 
 Cathy Sherman 
 
Fisheries Advisory Committee:  David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 
 Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; and 
 Jeremy Botz, ADF&G   
 
Cordova Trails Committee:  Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, Jim Kallander, Toni Godes, and  
 David Zastrow 
 
Public Services Building Design Committee:  David Reggiani - Chairman, Chief Bob 
 (Griffiths), Martin Moe, Jim Kacsh, Dick Groff, Mike Hicks, Tom Bailer 
 
E-911 Committee: Chief Bob Griffiths – Chairman, Bret Bradford, Gray Graham, Dick Groff, 
 Mike Hicks (and/or Paul Trumblee), David Allison, George Covel 
 

Calendars: 3 months’ of calendars are attached hereto 

 
May 2012; June 2012; July 2012 

100



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

 1 2 

 

HSB Mtg 7:00 LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

 

3 

 

 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

—Clerk vaca—— 

4 

 

 

 

—Clerk vaca—— 

5 

6 7 8 

 

 

P&Z Mtg 7pm CH 

9 

 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

canceled 

10 

 

Hrbr Cms Spec 7pm 

CH 

11 12 

13 14 

 

 

7:30 special mtg LMR 

15 

 

5:30 Prks & Rec LMR 

16 

 

 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

canceled 

17 

CR opener 7am—

7pm 

18 19 

20 

 

 

 

—Clerk in training— 

21 

 

 

 

—Clerk in training— 

22 

 

 

 

—Clerk in training— 

23 

 

 

 

—Clerk in training— 

24 

 

 

 

—Clerk in training— 

25 

 

 

 

—Clerk in training— 

26 

27 28 

Memorial Day  

holiday—City Hall 

Offices Closed 

29 30 31  Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

May 2012 

101



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

    1 2 

3 4 5 6 

 

 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

7 8 9 

10 11 12 

 

P&Z Commission 

Mtg 7pm CH 

13 

 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 

14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

June 2012 

102



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 

 

 

2012 tax bills mailed 

2 3 4  

City Hall Offices 

Closed 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

5 6 7 

8 9 10 

 

P&Z Commission 

Mtg 7pm CH 

11 

 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 

12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31    Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

July 2012 

103


	f.3.a
	f.3.b
	f.3.c
	g.4
	h.5
	h.5a
	h.6
	h.6a
	h.6a
	h.6a1
	h.6a2
	House CS for CSSB182 Memo.pdf
	HCS_for_CSSB182_5_Pager_Appendix_A_FY13_Foundation_Proj_4-24-12
	Report

	PupilTran_MillRate2.65_CTEincrease_$25MbyAADM_4-16-12
	$25M by AADM & CTE increase
	2.65 Mill Rate


	h.6a3
	h.6a4

	h.7
	h.7a
	h.7b
	h.7c
	h.7d
	h.7e
	h.7e1
	h.7e2
	h.7e3
	h.7e4
	h.7e5

	i.8
	i.9
	i.10
	i.11
	i.12
	i.13
	j.14a
	j.14b
	j.15
	j.15.a
	j.15.b
	j.15.c
	j.15.d

	j.16
	j.16.a
	j.16.b
	j.16.c

	j.17
	j.17.a
	j.17.b
	j.17.c

	j.18
	j.18.a
	j.18.b

	j.19
	j.19.a
	j.19.b
	j.19.c
	j.19.d

	j.20
	PENDING AGENDA
	mayjunjul


